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October 28, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\w Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

)

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing sole source agreement with the Foundation for Healthy Communities (Vendor
#154533-6001), 125 Airport Road, Concord, NH 03301, to continue assisting Critical Access Hospitals
to improve quality of care for Medicare beneficiaries and to implement quality improvement activities in
thirteen (13) Critical Access Hospitals by increasing the price limitation by $25,500 from $481,446 to
$506,946, with no change to the contract completion date of August 31, 2021, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on December
20, 2017 (Item #20) and amended on May 16, 2018 (Item #9) and October 31, 2018 (Item #20).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with authority
to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-901010-2218 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY &
PERFORMANCE, HOSPITAL FLEX PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Total

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $121,040 $0 $121,040

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $134,947 $0 $134,947

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $101,000 $15,500 $116,500

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $117,861 $10,000 $127,861

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $6,598 $0 $6,598

Mi Total: $481,446 $25,500 $506,946



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the first amendment, approved on May 16, 2018 (Item #9),
Increased the funding by more than 10% of the total price limitation. The Foundation for Healthy
Communities is currently providing financial improvement support for the thirteen (13) Critical Access
Hospitals (CAHs), which has proven to be successful.

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding for the development of a Sustainability
Plan for the Claims Denials Analytics Project, designed to ensure the reduction of denied claims, improve
reimbursements for care provided, and reduce the administrative burden of insurance claims.

The Claims Denials Analytics Project was initiated in January 2019 and in the nine (9) months of
support, the amount of claims denied for the CAHs has decreased from approximately $14 million to $9
million. This significant increase in revenue for the CAHs improves their financial standing and their ability
to continue providing services to the residents of New Hampshire. The development of a sustainability
plan will ensure the progress made in reducing claims denials will not be lost.

New Hampshire's CAHs serve all rural area residents and visitors, which is approximately thirty-
seven percent (37%) of New Hampshire's total population. New Hampshire residents in rural
communities face geographic barriers to health care such as increased travel time to health care
providers and hospitals. Access to oral, mental, primary, specialty and reproductive health care can be a
significant challenge, especially to those without access to transportation. Ensuring the financial
wellbeing of the CAHs is an integral part of maintaining essential healthcare access.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:

One hundred percent (100%) of participating hospitals receive baseline denial rates and a
comparison to New Hampshire and National Critical Access Hospitals.

•  At least one (1) revenue cycle management activity/project is offered during the contract
period that is feasible for a member of the finance staff of each participating Critical Access
Hospital to attend.

•  At least fifty percent (50%) of the Critical Access Hospitals participating in revenue cycle
management activities/projects show an improvement in one (1) financial indicator.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the sustainability of the
progress made in reducing the number of denied claims for CAHs will be at risk. Consequently, CAHs
may forfeit access to financial assessments that would improve their revenue cycle management, thereby
reducing their financial stability-and increasing the risk of a discontinuation of essential CAH services,
which would negatively impact many of New Hampshire's most vulnerable citizens.

Area served: Critical Access Hospital service areas statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Resources and Services Administration, State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program; Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.241; Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)
U2WRH33289.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

R^pectfully submitted,

frey A.^ Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rurial Hospital Flexibility Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program Contract

This Amendment to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #3"). is by and behween the State of New Hampshire, Department pf Health and Human
Services (hereinafter reifeited to as the 'State" or "Department") and Foundation for Healthy Corhmunities
(hereinafter refen-ed to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 125 Airport
Fload, Concord, NH 0330.1.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreemerit (the "CohtracT) approved by the Goveirior and^ecutiye Council
on December 20, 2017 (Item ̂ 0), as amended on May 16, 2018 (Item^^) and October 31, 2018 (Item
#20), the Contractor agieed to peiform certain services based upon the terrhs and conditions specified |n
the Contract as arhehded and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37; General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be arnended
upon syritten agreement of the parties and approval frorh the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the pai^ies agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of ser\dces to support
continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendhients not incorisisteht with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in cohisideratioh of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and cohditioris contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amerid as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1 .si. Price Limitation, to read: >

$506,946.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Coritracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan p. White, Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

A. Exhibit A, Scope pf Services ̂ Amendment #1; Sedion 2, Scope of Work; to add Subsection 2.9,
to read:

2.9 The Contractor shall develop a Sustalnablllty Plari for the analysis pf claims deniajs that may
Include a temporary increase for customer support based on the documented needs of the
hospitals.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services - Amendment #1; to add Se^on 7, Deliverables, to read:
7. Deliverables

7,1 the Contractor shall submit a Sustainability Plan for the analysis of claims deriials to the
Department no later than February 29, 2020.

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment #3 Contractor Initials •

RFP-2018-DPHS-07-MEDIC Page 1 of 4 Date. T^ZlZZi



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Prograrn

5L-?:

6. Exhibit B, Me^pds arid Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4 to read:

4, Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures only in
accordance with Exhibits B-1 Budget, Br2 Budget, B-3 Budget - Amendmerit #3 and B-4
Budget - Amendment #3/

7. Delete Exhibit B-3 - Amendment #1 iri its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-3 - Amendment #3.

8. Delete Exhibit B^ - Arhendment #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3.

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment #3 Contractor Initials

RFP-20i8-DPHS-07-MEDIC Page 2 of 4 Date. junh



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Gpvemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of N^ Hampshire
bepartm^ of Hezrithvand Human Services

'%hq
Date .isa Morris

Director

Foundatio

/o/%! a
Date

tie

ealthy Communities

fi.®-

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of. ■ . County of on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly a^ve, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person AA^ose name is sighed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this dpcurhent in the
capacity indicated above.

SlgnMire b^^ry Public or^ustice of the Peace

'  djitle^ ' - --Narrie and Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ^

S : COMMISSION S
S  : : :=  \ OCT. 3,2023 ; I

Foundation for Healthy Communities

RFP-2018-DPHS-07-MEDIC

Amendments

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved ias to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

III ̂
Date I I Narhe:/

Title: ^ ^ - '

I hereby certjfy that the foregoing Amendnrient was approved by the Goyemor and Executive Council of
the State of New HarriDshire at the Meeting on: fdate of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment #3

RFP-2018-DPHS-07-MEDIC Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR

HEALTHY COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

October 28, 1968. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and

is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0004524446

M
Urn

A

(h

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of June A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



Foundation fin- .
Healthy Communities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Stephen Ahnen^ of the Foundation for Healthy Communities, do hereby certify that;

1. I am the duly elected Secretary of the Foundation for Healthy Communities:

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous

consent of the Board of Trustees of the Foundation Healthy Communities, duly adopted on

October 12. 2017:

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters

into any and all contracts, amendments, renewals, reyisions Or modifications thereto,

with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its Department of Heajth and Human

Services.

RESOLVED: Peter Ames became the duly appointed Executive. Director for the

Foundation for Healthy Communities on August 14.2017.

RESOLVED; That the Executive Director or the Associate Executive Director or the

Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation: for Healthy- Communities are hereby

authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to

execute any arid all documents, agreements, and other instruments, and any

amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,

desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director and

Anne Diefendorf is the duly appointed Associate Executive Director and Stephen

Ahnen is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.



Foundation for Healthy Communities
Certificate of Vote/Authority

Page 2

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of October 8. 2019.

IN WITNESS WHE^OF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretarv of the

Foundation for Healthv Communities this Octgl^er 8. 2019.

Stephen Ahnen/Secretary, Foundation for Healthy Coinmunities

STATE OF im

COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before rne this October 8.2019 bv Sally Short.

^  MY
5 ; COMMISSION \ %
=  : EXPtRES ; =
5  ; OCT. 3,2023 : =

''foy

Notary Publi<QiStice of the Peace / ^
My Commission Expires: f^rJ j y



/\COKO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE («Mrt)DrrYYY)

10/4/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License tf 1780862
HUB International New England
100 Central Street, Suite 201
Holllston, MA 01746

Dan Joyal

rA/CNo.E«J: (774) 233-6208 1 r;Cc.no.:
lan.joyaK^hublnternational.com

INSURERIS. AFFORDINO COVFRAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Hartford Casualty Insurance ComDanv 29424

INSURED

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn: Linda Levesque
125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

INSURERS Twin Citv Fire Insurance ComDanv 29459

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURERS

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR
wvn POUCY NUMBER

POLJCY EFF
fMMmn/YYYYI

POUCY EXP
/MMmO/YYYY. LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

1 CLAIMS-MADE j X | OCCUR X 08SBAVW2923 6/22/2019 6/22/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

DAMAGE TO RENTED
.i^EMlSES.(Ea.O!Ecuiienc«]

MFD EXP lAnv or>a oaraon.

J  300,000
,  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE
,  2,000,000

X POLICY [_t 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO
J  2,000,000

s

AUTOMOBILE LIABILrTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

s

ANY AUTO RODIl Y INJURY fPar oaraon) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIPi^s only

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

mm?

flODlLY INJURY fPaf acddanll s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddanlT s

s

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X jOCCUR
CLAIMS-MADE X 08SBAVW2923 6/22/2019 6/22/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  2,000.000

AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

t OED X RETENTIONS 10,000 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILTTY ^^
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE | 1I^FI^EWMIjM^^ EXCLUDED? j |
If yaa. daacrlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

HI A

08WECIVS293 6/22/2019 6/22/2020

PER 1 t OTH-

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
,  500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
J  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddMonU R^mtrli* ScMuk. may ba attseftad If mora apaea la raqulrad.
Foundation for Healthy Communities Is considered a Named Insured for the above mentioned policies.

State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03) <S> 1966-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



□
Foundation for

Healthy Coriirhuniti^

VISION: Residents of New Hampshire achieve their highest potential for health and well-
being in the communities where they live, work, learn, and play.

VALUES: Respect

Integrity

Excellence

Innovation

Engagement

Equity

Continuous Learning

MISSION: Improve health and health care in communities through partnerships that
engage individuals and organizations.

KEY OBJECTIVES:

•  Improve health by promoting innovative, high value quality practices and within
organizations and communities.

•  Lead change strategies that educate, create and sustain healthier communities and
make the healthy choice the easy choice.

• Work to promote access to affordable health care and resources that supports the well-
being of all people.
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y Berry Dunn
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of Decerhber 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assetsi and dash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with . U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of intemal contrpi relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from mateiial mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility |s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material mlsstatement.

An audit involves pedorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ahipuhts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend oh the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the Hsks of material misStatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
Foundation's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion
on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the apprbptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the byerali financial
statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial staterhents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in Its net
assets arid its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting pnhciples.

Bangor, ME • Portland. ME • Manchestei, NH • Glastonbury, CT • Charleston, WV • Phoehjx, AZ
berrydurSri.com



Board of tnjstees
Foundation for Healthy Communities
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Change in Accouriting. Principle

As discussed In Note 1 to the financial statements, In 2018 the Foundation adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial
Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities p'opic 958). Our opinion is not modified with respect to this rnatten

Manchester, New Hampshire
June 6, 2019



FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

2018 2017

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

$ 570,277
483,614
113,330

6.176

$ 845,942
624,411

105,610
5.991

Total current assets 1.173.397 1.581.954

Investments 703.806 769.672

Property and equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Equipment and furniture

Less accumulated depreciation

1,118

147.427

148,545
142.320

1,118

147.427

148,545
139.242

Property and equipment, net 6.225 9.303

Total assets £1.883.428 £2.360.929

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

$  4,547
31,023
47,264
5.446

$ 409,318
39,310

44,660

5.243

Total current liabilities and total liabilities 88.280 498.531

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating
Intemally designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

700,951
646.909

1,347,860
447.288

838,423
547.827

1,386,250
476.148

Total net assets 1.795.148 1.862.398

Total liabilities and net assets £1.883.428 £2.360.929

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-2-



FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Without donor restrictions

Internally With donor

Goeratina Desianated Total restrictions Total

Revenues

Foundation support $ 423,121 $ $ 423,121 $ $ 423,121

Program services 2,118.773 - 2,118,773 - 2,118,773

Seminars, meetings, and
workshops 197,328 - 197,328 - 197,328

Interest and dividend income 19,309 - 19,309 - 19,309

Gifts and donations 1,027 - 1,027 - 1,027

Grant support - - - 720,629 720,629

Net assets released from

restrictions 570,013 179,476 749,489 (749.489) -

Net assets released from

internally designated 80.394 f80.3941 . . -

Total revenues 3.409.965 99.082 3.509.047 f28.8601 3.480.187

Expenses
Salaries and related taxes 1,294,082 - 1,294,082 - 1,294,082

Other operating 133,447 - 133,447 - 133,447

Program services 1,832,702 - 1,832,702 - 1,832,702

Seminars, meetings, and
workshops 214,639 - 214,639 - 214,639

Depreciation 3,078 - 3,078 - 3,078

Provision for bad debts 3.526 - 3.526 - 3.526

Total expenses 3.481.474 3.481.474 3.481.474

Change in net assets from
operations (71,509) 99,082 27,573 (28,860) (1.287)

Net realized and unrealized loss on

investments f65.9631 . f65.9631 - f65.9631

Total change in net assets (137,472) 99,082 (38,390) (28.860) (67,250)

Net assets, beginning of year 838.423 547.827 1.386.250 476.148 1.862.398

Net assets, end of year $ 700.951 $ 646.909 $1,347,860 $  447.288 $1,795,148

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Without donor restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and

v\/orkshops
Interest and dividend income

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from

intemally designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries and related taxes

Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings, and
workshops

Depreciation

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Total change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Ooeratina

Internally
Desionated Total

With donor

restrictions Total

I  403,120

2,006,853
$ $ 403,120

2,006,853
$ $ 403,120

2,006,853

165,490

16,292 -

165,490

16,292
881,275

165,490

16,292
881,275

756,853 573,507 1,330,360 (1,330,360) -

162.247 f162.2471

3.510.855 411.260 3.922.115 f449.0851 3.473.030

1,241,634
123,141

1,961,124

- 1,241,634

123,141

1,961,124

-

1,241,634
123,141

1,961,124

192,202

3.078

- 192,202

3.078

- 192,202
3.078

3.521.179 3.521.179 3.521.179

(10,324) 411,260 400,936 (449,085) (48,149)

91.177 91.177 91.177

80,853 411,260 492,113 (449,085) 43,028

757.570 136.567 894.137 925.233 1.819.370

i  838.423 $ 547.827 $1,386,250 $  476.148 $1,862,398

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (67,250) $ 43,028

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
(used) provided by operating activities

Depreciation 3,078 3,078

Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments 65,963 (91,177)
Provision for bad debts 3,526 -

(Increase) decrease in
Accounts receivable 137,271 (15,320)
Prepaid expenses (185) 1,125

Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable (404,771) 306,626

Accrued payroll and related amounts (8,287) (9,529)
Due to/from affiliates (5,116) (15,770)
Deferred revenue 203 (14.667)

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities r275.568) 207.394

Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchases of investments (10,548) (16,872)
Proceeds from sale of investments 10.451 14.751

Net cash used by investing activities (97) (2.121)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (275,665) 205,273

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 845.942 640.669

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 570.277 $ 845.942

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Organization

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating
to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy communities.
The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose is
to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the statement of activites and changes in net assets. At December 31,
2018 and 2017, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Eouivaients

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual

accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
are included in the changes in net assets for operations.

Investments, In general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or Illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Revenue Recognition

Grants awarded in advance of expenditures are reported as support for net assets with donor
restrictions support if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grant funds. When
a grant restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to operating net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and changes in net assets as "net
assets released from restrictions". If there are unused grant funds at the time the grant restrictions
expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain the unused grant funds to be
used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives authorization from the grantor, then
the Board of Trustees or management internally designates the use of those funds for future
projects. These amounts are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to internally
designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and
changes in net assets as "net assets released from internally designated."
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Resources received from service beneficiaries for specific projects, programs, or activities that
have not yet taken place are recognized as deferred revenue to the extent that the earnings
process has not been completed.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit
donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the Foundation
reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The statements of activities and changes in net assets include a measure of change in net assets
from operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from this measure include realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501 (a) of the Code.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2016, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958), which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The new ASU
marks the completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for profit financial
reporting. Under the new ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The previous three
category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The ASU also imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses. The
ASU is effective for the Organization for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through June 6, 2019, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Avallabllltv and Llouidltv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has working capital of $1,085,117 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 134 which Includes cash and cash equivalents,
and investments.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the following financial assets could readily be available within
one year of the statement of financial position date to meet general expenditure:

2018 2017

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 570,277 $ 845,942
Accounts receivable, net 483,614 624,411
Due from affiliate 113,330 105,610
Investments 703.806 769.672

Total financial assets 1,871,027 2,345,635

Donor-Imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds (447.2881 (476.1481

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 1.423.739 $ 1.869.487

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31,2018 and 2017

3. Investments

The composition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2018 2017

Marketable equity securities $ 216,722 $ 220,535
Mutual funds 487.084 549.137

$ 703.806 $ 769.672

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $447,288 and $476,148 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016, the Foundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Since the original award the State of New Hampshire has
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to exceed $3,851,172 as of
December 31, 2018. Receipt of the grant and recognition of the related revenue is conditional upon
incurring qualifying expenditures. For the years ending December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Foundation recognized program and grant support related to this award in the amount of $941,414
and $1,290,812, respectively.

6. Related Partv Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association. Rental expense under this lease for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $48,909 and $48,100, respectively.

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these services in 2018 and 2017 was $155,552 and
$154,529, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation owed the Association $47,264 and
$44,660, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $113,330 and $105,610 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Foundation received support from the Association in the amount of $423,121
and $403,120, respectively.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401 (k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2018 and 2017 was $43,219
and $45,711, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated to general and administration include
salaries and related taxes, allocated based on the underlying salaries and other operating,
insurance and depreciation, allocated using bases estimating the utilization of support services.
Expenses related to services provided for the public interest are as follows:

2018 2017

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $1,130,347 $1,054,866
Office supplies and other 269,153 165,245
Occupancy 36,104 30,684
Subrecipients 870,820 1,456,387
Subcontractors 718,048 356,237
Seminars, meetings and workshops 246,791 226,425
Insurance 3,011 2,300
Depreciation 2.462 2.462

Total program services 3.276.736 3.294.606

General and administrative

Salaries and related taxes 163,731 186,768
Office supplies and other 3,830 3,264
Occupancy 31,028 34,392
Bad debt expense 3,526
Insurance 2,007 1,533
Depreciation 616 616

Total general and administrative 204.738 226.573

$3.481.474 $3.521.179
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

9. Concentrations of Credit Risk

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.

10. Fair Value Measurement

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) In the principal or most advantageous market for the asset
or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. FASB
ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The
standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level 1.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

SFY 2020:

Greg Vasse Director, Rural OIN 105.264 26% 27,369

SFY 2021:

OreR Vasse Director, Rural QFN 108,005 26% 28,082
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHfRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY & PERFORMANCE

29 HA2EN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-27M638 1-800-8S2-334S Eit. 4638

Fax; 603-27M827 TDD Acce»: 1.800'735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 24, 2018
His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing agreement with Foundation for Healthy Communities. (Vendor #154533-8001), 125
Airport Road. Concord. NH 03301, to continue assisting Critical Access Hospitals to improve quality of
care for Medicare beneficiaries and to implement quality improvement activities in thirteen Critical
Access Hospitals by increasing the price limitation by $27,300 from $454,146 to an amount not to
exceed $481,446, with no change to the contract completion date of August 30, 2021 effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on December
20, 2017 (Item #20) and amended on May 16, 2018 (Item #9). 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in following account in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encurnbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and
Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-901010-2218 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC

OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY. &

PERFORft/lANCE, HOSPITAL FLEX PFtOGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Total

Amount

2018 102-

500731

Contracts for

ProQ Svc
90076000 $121,040 $0.00 $121,040

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svc

90076000 $107,647 $27,300.00 $134,947

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svc

90076000 $101,000 $0.00 $101,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proq Svc

90076000 $117,861 $0.00 $117,861

2022 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076000 $6,598 $0.00 $6,598

mmummtrnm Total: $454,146 $27,300 $481,446



EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funding that will fund stipends to individual
staff or teams at Critical Access Hospital (CAHs) who complete quality improvement activities during
State Fiscal Year 2019 upon receipt of an approved completed application to the Rural Health and
Primary Care Section. These stipends will allow hospital staff members to implement a new component
of the hospital's Antibiotic Stewardship Program using the specific "potential improvement actions"
documented in the Core Element Four Action section of the CDC publication, "Implementation of
Antibiotic Stewardship Core Elements at Small and Critical Access Hospitals."

Altematively. CAHs may identify a need for improving the care measured by other mandated
Quality Improvement core measures. Quality Improvement projections will assist with improving
hospital processes and financial viability as well as to Increase educational opportunities for hospital
staff at CAHs, ensuring continued and optimal care for the New Hampshire population. These stipends
are part of a strategic initiative to support quality improvement activities in Critical Access Hospitals.

In an increasingly challenging healthcare environment. CAHs need to improve care quality,
improve the patient experience, and reduce costs to withstand the transition to value-based care. New
Hampshire's CAHs serve approximately 37% of our total population living in rural areas. New
Hampshire residents in rural communities face geographic barriers to health care such as lack of
transportation and increased travel time to health care providers and hospitals. Access to oral, mental,
primary, specialty and/or reproductive health care can be a significant <^allenge, especially to those
without access to transportation.

In addition to the residents sen/ed by New Hampshire's CAHs, many New Hampshire citizens
depend on these hospitals as an employer, a consumer of goods, and as a community institution.
CAHs are often the largest employer in the area and help sustain local, businesses that provide goods
and services. In addition, alt of New Hampshire's Critical Access Hospitals provide community benefits
through uncompensated care, health initiatives sponsorships, and targeted care for the most pressing
community needs. It is essential that rural hospitals survive the difficult economic transition of care that
is taking place throughout the United States.

The Contractor must meet or exceed the following performance measures to ensure the
effectiveness of the agreement, as monitored on a monthly basis:

•  100% of participating hospitals receive baseline denial rates and a comparison to New
Hampshire and National Critical Access Hospitals.

•  100% of participating hospitals receive an analysis of their charge capture effectiveness and
receive technical assistance to boost charge capture effectiveness.

•  At least 1 revenue cycle management activity is offered during the contract period that is
feasible for a member of the finance staff of each participating CriticarAccess Hospital to
attend.

•  At least 50% of the Critical Access Hospitals participating in revenue cycle management
activities show an improvement in 1 financial indicator.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019. unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and State Fiscal year 2022-
2023 biennia.



Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire's CAHs
may forfeit access to financial assessments that would improve their revenue cycle management,
thereby increasing costs of the care they provide. Additionally, should this request not be approved,
there may be a discontinuation of initiatives that sustain essential services for CAHs, which would

negatively impact many of NH's most vulnerable citizens.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) #93.241 US Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services
Administration. State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
H54RH00022.

In the event that the Federal Funds t>ecome no longer available, General Funds will not be

requested to support this program.

Respectfully itted

Lisa Morris, MSSW
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparimenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Ruraj Hospital Flexibility Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendmerit #2 to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

This 2nd Amendment to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #2") dated this 4th day of June, 2010, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the 'State* or. "Department") and
Foundation for Health Communities, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor*), a corporation with a
place of business at 125 Airport Road, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 20. 2017 (Item #20). as amended on May 16, 2018 (Item #9). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract and. Iri
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, price
limitation and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P^37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify, the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract and e)dend contract senrlces for up to three (3) years upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to. Increase the pnce limitation, and modify the scope of services.to
support continued delivery of these sen/Ices; and ^

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditloris
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$481,446.

2. Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.8.3 to read:

2.8.3. Providing a stipend to persons completing Quality Improvement activities at the CAHs in the
amount of $1,909 per project not to exceed $24,818 or 13 (thirteen) total stipends. Each
stipend .will be paid following approval from RHPCS. The stipends will t>e paid by June 30.
2019.

3. Delete Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1 SFY 2019, iri its entirety and replace with Exhibit 8-2.
Amendment #2 SPY 2019.

4. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment 02
RFP-2018-OPHS-O7.MEDIC PegeT of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexiblil^ Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of t^lth ar^l Human Services

3M
Date Lisa Morris. MSSW

Director

/z^\8
Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Name; (^4^ ̂

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State offNJ6jHfw<?;K fP, County of |A(rn/V1ffcl6 on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Sigraure of Noft^ Pubfic or Justice of the Peace

Name and (Title of No^^ry or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires; t)fal?4/7,eao

I 'O/O® I

I  PUBLtC. / I

Foundallon for Healthy Communities
RFP-2018-DPHS-07-MEDIC

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by ine Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities
RFP-2018-OPHS-07-MEOIC

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Departrhent of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. -Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and. for ah' other than
authorized purpose have access or potential- access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With , regard to Protected Health
Inforrnation." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' iri action
164.402 of title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident^ shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of nIsT i^bllcatibn 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling (Suide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential ihforrriation' or -Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
senrices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End tJ^r" means any peifson or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's, employee;
business associate, subcontractor, other dovmstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or suixessful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the ONvner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and rnisrouting of physical or electronic

V4.Xa$tupd8to 04.04.2016 EjdtlbltK Contractor InUab.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' mearis any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Ir^fprrhation
Technology or delegate as a protected r^etwork (designed,, tested, and
approy*^. by means of the State, to transrnit) yyill be consider^ an open
nietwork and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distihguish
or trace ah indlviduars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-0:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall n^ean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In the HIPAA Privacy Rulb at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall rriean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Heajth Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C,. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2016 E;4iibitK Contractor Initi
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New HaiTi.pshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and atx)ve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such addrtional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. the Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, tbe Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert kno^edgeabie In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure s^ure trarismlssloh via the Internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Erhall. End User may only employ email to transmit Gohfideritial Data if
email Is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by ernajl addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to tranis'mit Gohfideritial
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the Web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transrhltted via a Web site.

.  j' * ',

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User rriay riot use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
rriail within the conitinerital U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confideritial Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open vWreless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via ah open

V4.Lastupdats04.04.201S ExMbUK Cont/sctor InUab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User rhust employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless netwoi1(.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End tJser's mbbilei device(s) or laptop from which infOfmation will be
transmitted or accessed.

id. SSH File transfer Protocol (SFtP), also known ais Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is eniploying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of

information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. VVireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via vsrireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

Hi. RETENTION AND DISPOSITIGN OF IDENTIFIAfiLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
cumently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must.have aggressive intrusion-detection and firev/alj protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Dispositipn

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conftdentlal Information on its systems (or its
sut>:Contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain vmtten certification for any State of New.Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroyirig the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and nvIII provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

-2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a

.  secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV, PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted sen/ices.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Last updata 04.04.2016 Exhibit K Contractor InKIa
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential informatibh.

6. If the Contractor will be sut>contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
prograrh of ah intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syst6m(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub:Contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to^ enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will t>6 completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership rnember within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promf^ly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center sen/Ices necessary due to
the breach..

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI arid PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5528). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that goverri protections for individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Departrpent of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitA/endor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within hvo
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential Information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified In this Coritract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d: send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and t>eir^ received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identiflable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and in ail cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In tmnisit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. .End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible, for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsrte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA,

and other applicable la\ys and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office arid
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches vrithin two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance vtrith the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations aruj procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable Information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if S|0. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents frorh among .different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches .that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. •

VI, PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInfonmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrlvacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.90v
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY & PERFORMANCE

,  29HAZENDRIVE,CONCORD.NK 03301
603-27I-4638 1 •000032.3345 Ext. 4638

F»x: 603-27 M827 TDD Accen: 1-800.735.2964

www.dbhs.ab.gov

Aprils, 2018
His Excellency, Governor Chrl^opherT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 -

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing agreement with Foundation for Healthy Communities. (Vendor #154533-8001), 125
Airport Road. Concord. NH 03301, to continue assisting Critical Access Hospitals to improve quality of
care for Medicare beneficiaries and to implement quality improvement activities over thirteen Critical
Access Hospitals by Increasing the price limitation by $373,146 from $81,000 to ari amount not to
exceed $454,146. and extending the completion date from August 31. 2018 to August 31^ 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. This agreement was originally approved by
the Governor and Executive Council on December 20, 2017 (Item #20). 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in following account in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019. and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and
Executive Council. If needed and justified.

05-95-90-901010-2218 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY, &
PERFORMANCE. HOSPITAL FLEX PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1'
Account Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Total

Amount
2018 102-

500731

Contracts

for Prop Svc
90076000 $58,930.50. $62,109.50 $121,040.00

2019 102-

500731

Contracts

for ProQ Svc
90076000 $22,069.50 $85,577.50 $107,647.00

2020 102-
500731

Contracts
for ProQ Svc

90076000 $0.00 $101,000.00 $101,000.00

2021 102-

500731

Contracts

for Prog Svc
90076000 $0.00 $117,861.00 $117,861.00

2022 102-

500731

Contracts

for Prog Svc
90076000 $0.00 $6,598.00 $6,598.00

Total: $81,000.00 $373,146.00 $454,146.00



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue improving hospital processes and financial viability as
well as to increase educational opportunities for hospital staff at Critical Access Hospitals, ensuring
continued and optimal care for the New Hampshire population.

Funds in this amendment will be further utilized to implement quality improvement stipend
projects aimed to help Critical Access Hospitals improve performance and patient safety resulting in
effective changes to streamline hospital processes. New Hampshire's, small, rural hospitals provide
local access to care for patients and act as an essential entry-point for Into systems of care between
Critical Access Hospitals and other community health services. This type of comprehensive care for
patients helps New Hampshire meet the goals of the triple aim: better quality care, better outcomes, for
a lower cost. '

Specifically, the Foundation for Healthy Communities will work with Critical Access Hospjtals on:
FInandal ar^ operational improvement projects which will include utilizing remittances to establish
baseline denial rates, analyzing charge capture effectiveness across CAHs. and providing comparative
reports for benchmarking performance relative to New Hampshire peers and National peers. Once
benchmarks have been established, the Foundation will provide technical assistance to hospitals for
implementing best practices and changes to improve performance. This set of projects was Initially
approved oni the December 20", 2017 GoverrK>r and Council session, but $260,646 in additional funds
exclusive of amounts predesignated for fiscal agency over State fiscal years 2018-2022 will enable the
Foundation to complete more in-depth assistance. Technical assistance services will increase by
$4,609.50 in fiscal year 2018. $60,577.50 in fiscal year 2019, $76,000.00 in fiscal year 2020.
$92,861.00 in 2021, and $6,598.00 in 2022.

The additional funds will also allow the Foundation to act as a fiscal agent to support quality
improvement activities at each of the hospitals In. State fi^l. years 2018-2021. Hospital staff will be
invited to participate In the Institute for Healthcare Improvement online learning platform through the
New England Rural Health Roundtable and are eligible for reimbursements for certifications and
courses upon documented completion. Funds in this area of activities will total $100,000; with $25,000
being allotted in State fiscal years 2018, 2019, 2O20. and 2021.

The Foundation will also provide stipends to individual staff at CAHs who complete quality
improvement activities during State fiscal year 2018 upon receipt of an approved completed application
to the Rural Health and Primary Care Section. These stipends vflll allow' hospital staff members to
implement a new component of the hospital's Antibiotic Stewardship\ Program using the specific
'potential improvement actions' documented in the Core Element Four: Action section of the CDC
publication, 'Implementation of Antibiotic Stewardship Core Elements at Small and Critical Access
Hospitals." Alternatively, CAHs may identify a need for improving the care measured by other
mandated Quality Improvement core measures. Funds dedicated to these quality improvement
activities will total $32,500, or $2,500 for up to thirteen (13) projects.

New Hampshire's Critical Access Hospitals serve approximately 37% of our total population
living in rural areas.^ As with most rural populations, those within New Hampshire tend to be
proportionately older, are more likely to be dependent upon Medicaid or Medicare, or are uninsured,
and reside in areas designated as Health Professional Shortage Areas or Medically Underserved
Areas. New Hampshire residents in rural communities face geographic barriers to health care such as
lack of transportation and increased travel time to health care providers and hospitals. Access to oral,
mental, primary, specialty and/or reproductive health care can be a significant challenge.

In addition to the residents served by New Hampshire's Critical Access Hospitals, many New
Hampshire citizens depend on these hospitals as an employer, a consumer of goods, and as a
community institution. Critical Access Hospitals are often the largest employer in the area and help to
bolster local businesses that provide goods and services. In addition, all of New Hampshire's Critical
Access Hospitals provide Community Benefits through uncompensated care, sponsorship of health



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Coundl
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initiatives, and targeted care for the most pressing community needs. It is essential that these rural
hospitals continue to survive through the difficult economic transition of care that is taking place
throughout the United States.

Exhibit C-l, Revisions to General Provfsions in the original contract reserves the Department's
right to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years contingent upon the vendor
providing satisfactory services, continued appropriation of funding and approval by the Governor and

' Executive Council.

The Contractor has made significant progress towards establishing the groundwork for
implementing performance measures including selecting a subcontractor to provide financial
improvement technical assistance, establishing agreement regarding assistance to be provided and
baseline financial measurement requirements with sub-contractor. The Contractor will be held to the
folloviringvperformance measures to ensure the effectiveness of the agreement, as discussed on a
monthly basis:

•  100% of participating hospitals receive baseline denial rates and a comparison to New
Hampshire and National Critical Access Hospitals.

•  100% of participating hospitals receive an analysis of their charge capture effectiveness and
receive technical assistance to boost charge capture effectiveness.

•  At least 1 revenue cycle management activity is offered during the contract period that is
feasible for a member of the finance staff of each participating Critical Access Hospital to
attend.

• ■ . At iBSSt 50% of the Crrtica! Access Hospitals participating in revenue cycle management
activities show an improvement in 1 financial indicator.

The State of New Hampshire has been receiving the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Grant
funds to support Critical Access Hospitals since the program began in 1999. Although an application
that Includes a progress report is required annually, the program only requires a" competitive application
every five years. The governor in each slate decides which entity is allowed to apply for the funding.
The Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services remains the only
program designated to apply for the funds. The next competitive application will be submitted in early
2019 for funding to begin September 1. 2019.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30. 2019, and the Department shall not l)e liable for any payments for services provided after
Jiine 30. 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 biennia.

■ Should Governor and Executive Council.not authorize this Request. New Hampshire's Critical
Access Hospitals may forfeit access to financial assessments that would improve their revenue cyde
management, thereby increasing costs of the care they provide. In an increasingly challenging
healthcare environment, Critical Access Hospitals need to improve care quality, improve the patient
experience, and reduce costs to withstand the transition to value-based care. Many of our most
vulnerable citizens rely on our Critical Access Hospitals to maintain and improve their health and
without this funding there may be a discortinuatlon of Initiatrves that may sustain essential services for
our hospitals.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFOA) #93.241 US Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services



Administration. State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
H54RH00022.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Approved by;

Morris. MSSWsa

treoror

tfft;fey A. ̂«yers
Commissioner

"The Dtparimeni of Healih and Human Sen-icrt' Iditsion is lo join communiiia and /amilies
in prodding opportunities fo' ctriteni to ochieit /iralfA and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospltai Flexibility Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

This 1" Amendment to the Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #1") dated this 5th day of April, 2018. Is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") end
Foundation for Health Communitieis. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a
place of business at 125 Airport Road, Concord; NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "ContracT) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 20. 2017 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and teims and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract ar>d extend contract services for up to three (3) years upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement for three (3) years, Increase the price
limitation, arKl modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions;ias
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$454,146.

3. Form P-37. Gerteral Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Refnemann, Esq.. Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services In its entirety and replace with Exhibit A • Amendment #1.
Scope of Services.

6.' Delete Exhibit B-1 SFY 2018 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 SFY
2018.

7. Delete Exhibit B-2 SFY 2019 in its entirety and replace with Exhibtt B-2 Amendment #1 SFY'
2019.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Budget SFY 2020.

9. Add ExhibH 8-4 Budget SFY 2021..

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Budget SFY 2022.

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment U1
RFP-2016-OPHS-07-MEDIC Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rurai Hospital Flexibility Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Coundl approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Lisa Morris. MSSW
Director

Foundation for Healthy Communities

dish r—^
Date Nam^: 7<.Hr -r. ,

Title: (P c.'iv.

Ackrxjwiedgement of Contractor's signature:

State of // , County of t ̂  on IwyVf ( ^'Q^^efore the undersigned officer,
persof»lly appeared the person Identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name Is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity Indicated above.

kiLK ̂  ■ (AUVU*C
of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace.

/K (/CtiUfi / QmM.h
lame and Trtle of Notary or Justicd of th^eace J

Jires: 516liMy Commission Expires:

Foundation for Healthy Communities Amendment dl
RFP-20t 8>DPHS47-ME0tC Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

the preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by tNs office. Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date/ I Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoinQ Amendment was approved by the (M^mocand Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of m^

X  OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communitiet
RFP.201SOPHS-074(tEDIC

Amendment 01

Paoe3ot3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons wHh limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that,-to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure 'requirements under this Agreement so as to. achieve compliar^
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to all thirteen (13) New Hampshire
Criticdl Access Hospitals (CAHs; identified in Exhibit A-1, Critical Access Hospitals).

2, ScopeofWork

2.1. The Contractor shall provide educatlon;<technical assistance, and/or consultations to

individual Critical Acce^ Hospitals (CAHs). and/or cohorts of CAHs, on improving
revenue cyde management. Specific strategies to Improve revenue cyde
management shall be:

2.1.1. Based on the most current Medicare Flexibility Grant needs assessment
conducted by the Department's Rural Health and primary Care Section
(RHPCS):.

2.1.2. Determined In collaboration with the CAN leaders; and

2.1.3. Approved by the RHPCS prior to implementation.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide the activities In year one as determined by the 2017
Medicare Flexibility Grant needs assessment and in collabbration with the CAH

leaders. The Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Utilize remittances to establish baseline denial rates among participating
CAHs allowlr>g for each hospital to benchmark performance relative to New
Hampshire peers.

2.2.2. Process Information and make recommendations for process
improvements.

2.2.3. Follow up.

2.2.4. Measure denial rates after six (6) months to assess Improvements are
completed.

2.2.5. Ensure any proposed amendments to the centred In year one are.
approved by the RHPCS. '

Poundstlon for HeoWiy CommunXlet ExNOH A Contractor MOab

RFP.201SOPHS-074IE01C PaoelofS Osta W"//y



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A - An>endment PI

2.3. Th0 Contractor shall ensure CAH electronic advances of remittances are
expedlttously and securely downloaded. The Contractor shall ensure claim denials
are analyzed and segmented into the following;

2.3.1. Reasons for denials.

2.3.2. Patient type.

2.3.3. Procedure.

2.3.4. Diagnosis code.

2.3.5. Multiple other elements end variables.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide annual activitiiBs to assist CAHs to improve revenue
. cycle managemeni as determined through a needs assessment performed by the
RHPCS. All activities must be evaluated using tools provided by RHPCS. The
actMUes shall Include, but are not limited to the following tasks and services: •
2.4.1. Assessment and redi^lon of denial rates;

2.4.2. Analysis of charge capture effectiveness;

\  2.4.3. Comprehensive charge master review;

2.4.4. Billing and coding educatioh;

2.4.5. Service line analysis;

2.4.6. Analysis of departmenl-tovel staffing;

2.4.7. Physician practice management assessment; and

2.4.8. Anatyste of reporting practices for Medicare reimbursement.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide the activities as determined by the Medicare FlexibllJty
Grant needs assessment completed during the previous year. Activities to be
conducted shall be based on the needs assessment and selected by the Contractor
in collatMralion with the CAH leaders. These activities may Include but are not limited
to:

2.5.1. Assessment and reduction of denial rates;

2.5.2. Analysis of charge capture effectivertess;

2.5.3. Comprehensive charge master review;

2.5.4. Billing and coding education;

2.5.5. Service line analysis;

2.5.6. Anatysfs of department-level staffing:

2.5.7. Physician practice management assessment: and

2.5.8. Analysis of reporting practices for Medicare reimbursement.

Fmnd«donfo(HestihyCo(nmvnjlk3 EjtfMA CorXnctorli

RFP.201I«)PHSKI74*EOIC Pi«<i2ol5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A - Amendment 01

2.6. The Contractor shall analyze charge capture effectiveness across CAHs; prepare a
comparative report for CAH peers; and offer technical assistance for Improving
charge capture across CAHs.

2.7. The Contractor shall utilize national cilnlcal programming via weblnar and conference
calls facilitated by ZOOM Technology, to ensure maximum staff participation In
Technical Assistance.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide .Fiscal Agent services that Include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Executing a sub-contract for S20.000 with the New England Rural Health
Roundtable to wof1( with the New England Performance Improvement
Network (Vermont, New Hampshire. Maine and Massachusetts) to provide

.  targeted best practice trainings and certifications for CAH staff and

providers. The RHPCS shall approve the subcontract language before It is

executed. The sub-contract term shall be September 1, 2017 to August 30.
2018.

. 2.8.2. . Executing a sub-contract for $100,000 with the New England Rural Health
Roundtable to ^rk with the New England Performance Improvement
Network (Vermont, New Hampshire. Maine and Massachusetts) to provide
targeted best practice trainings and certifications for CAH staff and

providers. Individual training and certification reimbursement will require
approval from RHPCS. The RHPCS shall approve the subcontract
language before it Is executed. The sub-contract term shall provide $25,000
prior to June 30. 2016, $25,000 from September 1. 2017 to June 30. 2019,
$25,000 from September 1 2018 to June 30. 2020, and $25,000 from
September 1, 2020 to June 30. 2021.

2.8.3. Providing a stipend to persons completing Quality Improvement activities at
the CAHs In the amount of $2,500 per project not to exceed $32,500 or 13
total stipends. Each stipend will be paid following approval from RHPCS.
The stipends wlil be paid by June 30. 2018.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed the perfonnance measures as identified in
Exhibit A-2, Performance Measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that the performance measures are annually achieved,
monitored monthly, and reported to RHPCS monthly to measure the effectiyeness of
the agreement.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the number and type of education sessions, technical
assistance sessions, and/or consultations provkt^ to CAHs regarding revenue cyde
management, along with the numt)er, names arK) roles of CAH staff participating in
each. This information shall bo tracked by the contractor using the TA Tracking
Sheet* as provided by RHPCS.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure that CAHs understand denial rates In comparison to
other CAHs.

AFoundstkm for HMbhy CofflfnunftiM ExNbh A Contradcx Intttsis
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Now Hampshire Dopartment of Heatth end Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Floxlblllty Program

Exhibit A - AmendmentJI

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with written reports on a monthly and
an annual basis, or upon Department request. Reports shall Include, but are not
limited to:

4.1.1. Copies of all invoices paid;

4.1.2. Progress on all deliverables;
I

4.1.3. Objectives;

4.1.4. Activities performed;

4.1.5. Performance measures; and

4.1.6. Bariiers to attaining desired results.

4.2. The Contractor shall use the Technical AssistarKe Tracl(lr>g Sheet, as provided by
the RHPCS. to track the following Items which shall include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Number af)d type of education sessions.

4.2.2. Technical assistance sessions.

4.2.3. Consultations provided to CAHs regarding revenue cycle management.

4.2.4. Number and role of CAM staff participating in each.

4.3. The Contractor shaD provide a report at the condusion of the each of the following
activities:

4.3.1. The number of unduplicated CAHs participating in one or more Flex furided
revenue cyde management activities including contact information.

4.3.2. Number of CAHs that adopted, or intend to adopt, process changes to
improve revenue cycle management (Post Training/Consultation Evaluation
Survey to be conducted by the RHPCS) following completion of the activity.

4.3.3. Number of CAHs showing improvement on revenue cycle mar^gerrient
indicators (evaluated l)y RHPCS using Federal Office of Rural Health Policy
(FORHP) Flex Program measure).

Foundation for Heaithy Communltln ExNbh A Controctor Inttists
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New Hampshire Doponment of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A - Amendment

5. Staffing

5.1. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Director of the Rural Quarrty Improvement
Network (QIN) whose job duties shall Include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Manage, coordinate, and monftor the Scope of Work against the
performance measures;

5.1.2. Se responsible for managing fiscal agency services;

5.1.3. Schedule and prioritize all contract deliverables;

5.1.4. Manage the alk>catlon of resources

5.2. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Associate Executive Director whose
job duties shall include, but are not limited to acting as backup to the
Director.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide one (1) Program and Grants Manager whose job duties
shall include, but are rx>t limited to:

.5.3.1. Grant management;

5.3.2. Administrative support; arKl

5.3.3. Liaison for contracts. ^

5.4. The Contractor shall provide an accounting office for all financial reporting related to
the contract and associated monthly billings.

6. Work Plan

6.1. The Conlractor shall meet with the Department one (1) time per month, In-person, to
review ktlvttles completed during the previous thirty (30) days and determine
activities to be completed In the following thirty (30) days.

Foioidstlon ̂  Heofthy CornmunlUn ExhbilA ContractvIntSstt
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

^  HAZCNDRtVE. CONCORD. NH OJJOI-&S2T
^27IS9M l-m-l52..U45E:>LS9>4

Fti. M>27|^SM TOO Accm: l-0»-7JS-29^

.VH nivtsiox orm'Public Health Services

itfTrry A. Meytn
CoamhiloAtr

liu M»rrK M&SW

Director

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

November 21, 2017

REQUESTEO ACTION .

Authorize the Oeparlment of Health and Human Services. OK/lsloh of Public Health Services, to
approve a contract with the Foundation for Healthy Communities, Vendor #154533-8001, 125 Airport
Road, Concord, NH 03301. to assist Critica) Access Hospitals to improve quality of care for Medicare
beneficiaries, with a Price Limitation of $81,000, effective the date of Governor and Council approval
through August 31. 2018. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the accounts listed below for SFY 2018 and SFY 2019; with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances t>etween State Fiscal-Years
through the Budget Office without approval from Governor arxf Executive Council, If needed and
justified.

\
05t95-90-901010-2218 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS. POLICY, &
PERFORMANCE. HOSPITAL FLEX PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $58,930.50

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90076000 $22,069.50 1

Total $81,000.00

EXPLANATION

Approval of this request will allow the vendor to provide evidence-based practices to assist New
Hampshire's Critical Access Hospitals to improve their performance, this vendor will work with Critical
Access Hospitals on the following erihancements: Financial and operational improvement projects to
include utilizing remittances to establish baseline denial rates, analysis of charge capture effectiveness
across Critical Access Hospitals, and providing comparative reports for benchmarkir>9 performance
relative to New Hampshire peers. These specific activities will allow the Critical Access Hospitals to
monitor their firTancial performance, strengthen their value in the communities they serve and assist
them In sustaining.access to quality healthcare in these areas.
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According to'the New Hampshire definition of rural, approximately 37% of the population and
84% of the landmass in New Hampshire is considered rural. As svith most rural ^pulatlons. those
within New Hampshire tend to be disproportionately older, are more likely to be dependent upon
Medicaid or Medicare, or are uninsured, and resr^ In areas designated as Health Professional
Shortage Areas or Medically Underserved Areas. New Hampshire residents In rural commurtilies
already face geographic barriers to health care such as lack of transportation ar>d Increased travel time
to health care providers ar>d hospitals. Access to oral, mental, primary, specialty and/or reproductive
health care can be a significant challenge as well. New Hampshire's thirteen (13) Critical Access
Hospitals provide local care to the majority of our rural population; and keeping these hospitals
financially viable Is a critical to keeping their doors open to serve some of our most vulr>erable citizens.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request. New Hampshire's Critical
Access Hospitals may forfeit access to financial assessments that would improve their revenue cycle
management, thereby reducing the cost of the care they provide. In an lncreasir>gly challenging
healthcare environment, Critical Access Hpspitals need to improve care quality, improve the patient
experience, aixi reduce costs to withstand the transition to value-based care. Many of our most
vulnerable citizens rely on our Critical Access Hospitals to maintain and improve their health and
without this fundir>g there may t)e a discontinuation of initiatives that may sustain essential services for
our hospitals.

This vendor was selected through a competitive bid process. The Department published a
Request (or Proposals on the Department of Health and Human Services website from August 25.
2017 through September 25, 2017. One (1) proposal was received. The proposal was reviewed arxf
scaed by a team of individuals with program' specific knowledge. The Score Summary sheet is
attached.

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1 of this contract and the Request- for Proposal, this Agreement,
has the option to extend services for up to three (3) years. contingent on satisfactory vendor
performance, continued funding arxJ Governor and Executive Council approval.

The Contractor shall ensure the following performance measures are annually achieved arxJ
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

•  1(X)% of hospitals receive baseline denial rates and a comparison to New Hampshire and
National Critical Access Hospitals.

•  100% of hospitals receive an analysis of their charge capture effectiveness and receive
technical assistance to boost charge capture effectiveness.

• At least 1 revenue cyde management activity is offered during the contract period that rs
feasible for a staff member of each Critical Access Hospital to attend.

•  At least 50% of the Critical Access Hospitals partldpating In revenue cyde management
activities show an improvement in 1 finandal Indicator.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domesllc Assistance
(CFOA) #93.241 US Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services
Administration. State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
H54RH00022.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds v^ll not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully subp^tted,

^■0
Lisa Morris. MSSW

Director

Approved by:
Meyers

Commissioner

T'lf DtportmfHl of Htatlh tuid Hitman Stri iets'Uiuion u to/oin communitia and fiimilia
in itrofiding opyortufulin for eilietnt lo orAici'r henftfi and indfpt:ndenef.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

JMedkve^Rural^FlexWnt^^^
RFP Name

RFP-2018'OPHS47-MEDIC

RFP Number Reviewer Names

1.
Alia Hayes. MPH. RuoK Heatih
Manager OPHS

Bidder Name

Foundation for HeaRhy Communltiea

Pess/FaD

Maximum

Polnta

Actual

Points

Allsa Oruzba. Administmtor 1. Hflih

Mgl ofc. Policy S Perl

200 179

. Adriane Bufte, Prog Planr III. Hlih
' Mgt Ofc. Com Him Setv

2-0 200 0

^ Cost: EDan Chase-Cucsrd.
Financial Administrator DPHS

3 0 200 0 Cost: Kirs Hageman. OPHS



Subject: Medicafc Rural Hosoiuil Flexibilicv Proflram/Rf P-20l8-DPHS-Q7-MEDtC
FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcrsloo 5/8/IS)

Notice: This afrecmem end ell of iuetuchraenis shell become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is private, conridemiel or proprietary must
be clearly ideniified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL FROViSIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Sute Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services .

i .2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Sueet

Concord. NH 0330t-3837

I.) Contractor Name

Foundation for Healthy Communities

1.4 Contractor Address

I2S Airport Road
Concord. NH0J30I

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

603-223-4346 FBX
603-225>0900

1.6 Account Number

OS-9 3-90>901010-22180000-

300731-^76000

1.7 Completion Date

August 31.2018

1.8 Price Limitation

S81.000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 Sute Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1. 11 Contractor Si 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Pecer Amea. BxecuClve DiracCor

1.13 Acknowledgement: Sute of "W

On NWt#*!*/ before the undersigned officer, perionally appeared the person idcniitled in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
provai tu he the person whose name is signet! in block I.I I, and acknowledged that s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

.County of

1.13.1 Srgnaiure oC Notary Public or Justice o(A Peace

ylik>u-<A. Hi.
1.13.2 Name »'.d Title of Notar^r Justice of the Peace i /^' i i j

1.14 e Agency Signmre

DMe:'^i^i^ lO
1.19 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.R O^antneni of Admimstrai ion, Division of Personnel O/qfplkoble}

Br- Director. Dn:

1.17 Approval b;K the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execution) (i/applicable)

By: .

1.18 Approval by the Govemor.and^^X^utive CouncQ jl/o/^lictple)

By: / 1 On:

L2.
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through (heagency identified in block I.I ("State**}, engages
contraaor identified in block 1.3 (**Contra£tor") to perrorm.
and (he Contractor shall perform, the worit or uie of goods, or
both, identified and more paniculaiiy described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
rServices").

3. EFFECTIVE DaTE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement (othe
contrary, and subject to (he approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties'
hereunder.-shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
bidck 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective.on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
l.M ("Effective Date").
3.2 If (he Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs i.rtcurred or Services performed.
Contraaor must complete'all Services by the Complaion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stau hereunder. Including,
without limitatiorv the continuance of payments hereunder, art
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropnation
of funds, and in no event shall (he State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, (he State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such furuJs become available, If ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
gjvingtheContraaornotlceofsuch termination. *rheSu(e
shall not be required lb transfer funds from any other account
to the Account ideruified in block 1.6 in (he event (unds in (hat

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
E^OUBfT B aliich is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the coninia price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contraaor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complae
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Sute
shall have-no liability (o (he Contractor other than the contraa
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTsa from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H: RSa
80:7 through RSA 80:7>c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limiiation set forth in block
1.8.

d. COMPLUNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 in corutection with ihe performance of the Services, the
Contraaor shall comply, with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obiigaiion or duty upon (he Contraaor,
including, but not limhed to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws.' This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ertsurc that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contraaor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this AgreemenI, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, relipon, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national ori^n and will take
afTirmative aaion to prevent such discrimination.
6J If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 112^ ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates D^anmeniof Labor(4l
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Sute of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contraaor fbnher agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of (he
Contraaor'} books, records and accounts for the purpose of
Bscenaining compliance with all rules, regulatiofls and orders,
and the covenants, (erms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONfVEL.

7.1 The Contraaor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contraaor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed artd otherwise authorized to do so under all applic^Ie
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise iinborized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Complaion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontraaor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State -
employee or oflKial, who is materially Involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shell survive lermirution of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting on'icer's decision shall be final for the State.

I. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acii or omissions of (he
Contra^or shall constitute in event of default hcrcundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failurcio perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
B.I .3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurratce of any Event of Default, the Stale
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specificaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not Umely remedied, lerminaie this Agreement^ effective two
(2) days after pving the Contractor notice of lermtnaiion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be under this
Apccmem and ordering that the portion of (he contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Dcfaull
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2 J set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Oefauh; and/or
8.2.4 trcu the Agreement as breached and pursue any of Its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

)

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infonnation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts^ sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic rcprcseniaiions, computer progrtrm computer

. printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
ill whether Hnished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with fonds provided for that purpose
under this Agreetnem. shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9 J Conndeniiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the eveni of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the

■ Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and contraa price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, comcni, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identiciT lo those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of (his Agrccmcm the Contractor is in all

.  rc3pccL« an independent contractor, and is ncilha an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTlccrs, employees, agents or members shall have authority lo
bind the Suic or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest In this Agreement without the prior written notice et^
consent of the State. Noneof the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, ils officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
Claimed to arise out oO the acu or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
rcserved'io the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, ai'its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: '
14.1.1 comprehensive genaal liability insurance againsi all
claims of bodily ir^ury. death or property damage, in amounts,
of not less thin SI .OCXI.OOOper occurrence and 52,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subpangraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 60% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in stfoparagraph 14.) her^n shall
be on policy forms and endorsemenu approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. De^rtmeni of '
Insurance, and issued by insurers licertsed in the State of New
Hampshire.

aContractor Initials a
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M.3 The Conifteior shall furnish lo ihe Comrafling Officer
ideniificd In block 1.9, or his or her successor, icenificaicfs)
of insuracKe for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish (o the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certific8ie(s) of
ittsurance for all rcnewal(s) of InsuratKC required under this
Agreement no lata than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurarKC policies. The ceitificale(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceitificale(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of canccilatior) or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Conracior agrees,
certifies and warrants, that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("H'ofken 'Comprnsaiion").
11.2 To (he extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 'A, Contractor shall
maintain, ind require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undotake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fiinush the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
marmer desaibed in N.H. RSA chapter 281'A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any oiha claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with pcrforntance of the
Services undcr^this Agreement.

16. WAfVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Sute to enforce each and all of the
provisiom hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by ccnified mail, postage prepaid, tn a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and I A, herein.

IB. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, -
waived or discharged only by an instrument In writing signed ■
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amcndmenu waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of f^w Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and b binding upon and
inures to the berKfii of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied igdna or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any'third panies and this Agreement shall not be .
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the AgrecnKni
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, cortstrvction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBILITY.' In the event any of the provisiotts of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
urrdastanding between the partis, and supcrscds all prior
Agreements and undemandingi retaiing hereto.
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New Hempehire Department of Health end Human Services
Medicare Rurai Hospttel Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities

. and expenditure requirements under this ̂ reement so as to a^ieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide contracted services to all thirteen (13) New Harnpshire
Crttlcal Access Hospitals (CAHs; Identified in Exhibit A-1. Crttlcat Ar^ss.Hospitals).

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide education, technical asslstence, ancVor consultations to

individual Crttlcal Access Hospitals (CAHs), arxt/or cohorts of CAHs. on improving
revenue cycle management. Specific strategies to Improve revenue cycle
management shall be:

2.1.1. Based on the most current Medicare Flexibility Grant needs assessment
conducted by the Departn^nfs Rural Health and primary Care Section
(RHPCS):

2.1.2. Determined in collaboration with the CAH leaders: and

I  2.1.3. Approved by ̂ e RHPCS prior to Implementation.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide the activities in year one as determined by the 2017
Medicare Flexibility Grant needs assessment and In collaboration with the CAH

leaders. The Contractor shaD:
(

2.2.1. Utilize remittances to establish baseline denial rates amor^g partclpating
CAHs allowing for each hospital to benchmark performance relative to New
Hampshire peers.

2.2.2. Process information and make recommendations for process
improvements.

2.2.3. Follow up.

2.2.4. Measure denial rates after six (6) months to assess Improvements are
completed.

2.2.5. Ensure any proposed amendments to the contract In year one are
approved by the RHPCS.

Fo*r«JttQnlDfHrtthyCoit«mrt^ ExtAttA CoflWeiof WtJil*
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New Hampehire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hoepttal FIcxtblllty Program

' Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure CAH electronic advances of remittances are

expeditlously and securely downloaded. The Contractor shall ensure claim denials

are analyzed arxl segmented Into the following:

2.3.1. Reasons for denials.

2.3.2. Patient type.

2.3.3. Procedure.

2.3.4. Diagr>osl8 code.

2.3.5. Multiple other elements and variables.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide annual activities to assist CAHs to Improve revenue
cyde martagement as determined through a needs assessment performed by the
RHPCS. All activities must be evaluated using tools provided by RHPCS. The
actlvftles shall indude, but ere not limited to the fbllowing tasks and services:

2.4.1. Assessment and reduction of denial rates;

2.4.2. Analysb of charge capture effectiveness;

2.4.3. Comprehensive charge master review;

2.4.4. Billing and coding education;

2.4.5. Service line analysis;

2.4.6. Analysis of department-level stafTing;

2.4.7. Physldan practice management assessment; and

2.4.8. Ar^alysis of repodirtg practices for Medicare reimbursement.

2.5. The Contiactor shall analyze charge capture effectiveness across CAHs; prepare a
comparative report for CAH peers; ard o^r technical assistance for improving
charge capture across CAHs. ,

2.6. The Contractor shall utilize national dinical programmmg via webtnar ar^d conference
calls fadlttated by ZOOM Technology, to ensure maximum staff partlcipaUon In
Technical Assistance.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide Fiscal Agent services that include, t>ut are not limited to.
executlr>g a sub^ntract for S20.000 with the New England Rural Health Roundtable
to work with the New England Performance Improvement Network (Vermont. New
Hampshire. Maine and Massachusetts) to provide targeted best practice trainings
and certifications for CAH staff and providers. The RHPCS shall approve the
subcontract language before It b executed. The sub-contract term shaO be
September 1. 2017 to August 30. 2016.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed this performance measures as identified in
Exhibit A-2. Performance Measures.

FowtdBflen for HMfthy CommunlllM ExItoMA CoKrtctsr <AiU»
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N«w Hampshire Deportment of Health and Human Sefvlcea
Medicare Rural Hoapltat Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that the performance measures are annually achieved,
rrwnltored monthly, and reported to RHPCS monthly to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide the numt)er and type of education sessions, technical
assistance sessions, and/or consultations provided to CAHs regarding revenue cycle
management, along with the number, names and roles of CAH staff participating in
each. This Information shall be tracked by the contractor using the "TA Tracking
Sheet* as provided by RHPCS.

3.4. The Contractor shall erasure that CAHs understand denial rates in comparison to
other CAHs.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with vwltteh reports on a monthly and
an annual basis, or upon Department request. Reports shall include, but are r»t
limited,to:

4.1.1. Copies of alllnvoices paid;

4.1.2. Progress on all deliverables;

4.1.3. Objectives;

4.1.4. ActlvlUes performed;

4.1.5. Performance measures: and

4.1.6. Barriers to attaining desired results.

4.2. The Contractor shall use the Technical Assis tare© Tracking Sheet, as provided by
the RHPCS. to track the following items which shall Include, but are not limited to;

4.2.1. Number and type of education sessions.

4.2.2. Technicai assistance sessions.

4.2.3. Consultations provided to CAHs regardir^g revernje cycle mar>agemcnt..

4.2.4. Number and role of CAH staff p3rtfclpatlr>g in each.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a report at the conclusion of the each of the following
activities:

4.3.1. The number of unduplicated CAHs participating In or» or more Flex funded
revenue cycle management activities IrKludIng contact Information.

4.3.2. Number of CAHs that adopted, or inter)d to adopt, process changes to
Improve revenue cycle management (Post Training/Consultation Evaluation
Survey to be conducted by the RHPCS) fo(lowlr>g completion of the activity.

4.3.3. Number of CAHs showing Improvement on revenue cycle management
indicators (evaluated by RHPCS using Federal Office of Rural Health Policy
(FORHP) Flex Program measure).

FoundBdonforHMia>y Corrwnunl(iM ErNUIA ,Coowcw WtW»
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New Hampshire Oepertment of Health ar>d Human Services
Medlcaro Rural Hospital Floilbility Program

Exhibit A

5. Staffing

5.1.

5.3.

The Contractor shall provide one (1). Director of the Rural Quality Improvement
Network (GIN) whose job duties shaO Include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Martage. coordinate, and monitor the Scope of Work against the
performance measures;

5.1.2. Be responsible for managing fiscal agerKy services;

5.1.3. . Schedule and priortUze ail contract deliverables;

5.1.4. Manage the allocation of resources

5.2. The Contractor shall provide or>e (1) Associate Executive Director whose
job duties shall include, but are not limited to ecting as backup to the
Director.

The Contractor shall provide one (1) Program and Grants Manager whose job duties
shall Include, but iare rK>t limited to:

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

Grant management;

Administrative support; and

Liaison for contracts.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide an accounting office for a!) financial reportir>g related to
the contract and associated monthly billings.

6. Work Plan

6.1.

Date Completed

November 2017

Target activities, Measures & Objectives

• Review contract objectives with potenttai
8ubcontractor(8) arkd negotiate a time
line for completion of the objectives as
described In RFP Section 3.2.5, cost
related to completion of 3.2.5 objectives,
project team, reporting frequencies, on
site work schedule with CAH constituent

bodies.

•  Review contract objectives with Rural
Health Coalition (RHC) to achieve
maximum participation from CAHs.

•  Review qualificatjoRs. costs and timeline
for the activity of potential
subcontractor's) with RHC to obtain
consensus support for the selection and
tirning of the project

•  Review contract ot^ctives and proposed
timelines with CAH Patient Account

Managers and identify a project liaison

Foundidan tof HMiltiy ConwnuniliM
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New Hampehiro Department of HeaHh and Human Services
Medicare Rurar Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

6.2. December 2017

with FHC from each participating CAH.

Review proposed subcor)tract(s) with
RHPCS Section Administrator.

Execute subcontract to gain access to
proprietary software albwing for rapid
downloading and analysis of electronic
advice of remittartce (^5 data).
Determine availability of funding
separata physician practice assessments
in contract year 1 OR necessity to focus
on specific denials causation related to
physician office operations in the option
year of the contract.

Report CAH participation and
subcontractor selection to RHPCS.

Review RHPCS objectives for NERHRT
and NEPI programs.

Review executed subcontract terms v^th

the RHC.

Prepare and execute Business
Associates AgreemerUs between FHC.
the data base subcontractor and each

partidpating CAH in order to clear any.
HIPAA-concems.

Develop review and execute service
agreement vnth NERHRT to address
NEPI and RHPCS objectives.

Devebp procedures to be followed for
each CAH to interfaoe Its finandal

system wtth and download data to the
subcontractor's proprietary 835 data
collection and anal^ls software.

Review interfaoe and download

procedures with participating CAH
patient accounts managers and ider^fy
any poter^tial problems for review with IT
staff at the CAH.

Develop and monitor the completion
schedule for Interfaces and downloads
from each participating CAM.

Provide rTX}nth end progress report to
RHPCS.

rotxitfstton lor HtMhy CommwnUM
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Now Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Servlcea
Medicare Rural Hospital Fiexibnity Program

Exhibit A

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

January 2018

February 2018

March 2018

• Obtain sign off commitment for execution
of Interface and downloads from each

CAH via the patient accounts liaison with
the FHC.

•  Monitor completion of the Interface and
initial data base for each participating
CAH.

•  Review the effectiveness of the

procedures with CAH patient accounts
managers at their January meeting.

• Report progress to RHC.

• Worft with subcontractor's analytics team
to establish individual hospital and
aggregate baseline for composite denials
metric (all cause).

•  Monitor NERHRT as the Executive

Director reports preparations and budget
to meet RHPCS artd NEPI objectives.

•  Provide month end progress report to
•  RHPCS.

•  Initiate denial causation by participatirtg
CAH and by denial reason, patient type,
procedure, diagnosis code and 'othe^.

•  Review progress and preliminary Hndings
with RHC via the QIN report (no
scheduled meeting in February).

•  Review any process or Interfece findings
and aarly progress with patient accounts
managers for partldpating CAHs at their
monthly meeting.

• Monitor NERHRT activity towards
achievement of NEPI and RHPCS

objectives.

•  Provide month end report to RHPCS and
review potential elements of a
subcontract with the New England QIN-
010 /Quandigm.

•  Plan for on-sHe preliminary presentation
to patient accounts managers with the
subcontractor's analytics team.

•  If preliminary causation due to physician
ofTice practicss is Identified by the
analytics team and fundirw s available.

PowidiaQn ter Mmfty Comnvraw
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New Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

6.6. April 2018

develop, review end negotiate a
subcontract with Qudlldigm / New
England QIN-OIO for provider based
practice recniltment and assessment per
budget allowances. If funding Is not
available to support 4 pracface
assessments (with elements of the
assessment to be determlr>ed). consider
moving the physician practice
assessments to an option year of the
contract.

•  Review program progress with RHC.

• Monitor continuing analysis and data
segmentation with submntractor.

•  Conduct first data analysis presentation
to patient accounts managers from
participating CAHs at their March 16
meeting.

• Monitor f4ERHRT activity relative to
RHPCS and NEPI objectives. Determine
the need for Interim release of funds to
NERHRT and If apparent, require an
interim service completion report to
validate any payment in advance of an
anticipated final paymerU in July. 2018.

•  Provide month end report to RHPCS
including status of New England QIN«
QIO Qualidigm subcontrecL

Plan and format indNldua! hospital
reports of causation for denials with
subcontractor's analytics team.

Assist New England QIN-QIO as
possible with provider based physlcien
practice recruitment for practice
assessments If this aspect of the project
is activated.

Develop and agree to schedule for
release of Information to each
penicipaUng CAH.

Report progress to RHC end individual
reporting schedule to each CAH.

Review reporting format artd fndivldudi
hospital sequences with patient eccounte
managers.
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Now Hompshlro Doportment of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Medicare Rural Hospital Ftoxiblllty Program

. Exhibit A

6.7.

6.8.

May 2018

Jur>e2018

Monitor NERHRT actrvlty towards
meeting RHPCS objectives.

Provide month end report to RHPCS.

•  Identify Individual,hospital interventiofts
and the interventional strategy with the
subcontractor's analytics team.

• Monitor New England QIN*QIO progress
if active In contract year 1 and assist \Mth
recruitment of the affordable number of

provider based practices based on the
terms of the subcontract.

•  Determine adequacy of funding to .
support individual hospital consuttatlons
with recommerxJed Interventions in

. contract year 1. If year 1 funding is
InsufTicient to cover 13 individual

consultations develop alterr^tive
Inten/entional strategy with groupings of
CAHs with similar denials causation

findings.

•  Re^w Individual Interventions proposed
by sulxontractor with RHC arxj with
patient accounts managers at their
respective meetings in May.

•  Monitor NERHRT activity towards
meeting RHPCS objectives and
determine if progress to date Is Indicative
of meetir>g objectives by the end of
contract year 1 (August 31, 2018). ̂

•  Provide progress report to RHPCS.

Conduct Intenrentional strategy
according to agreed-upon strategy In
year 1 - regional clusters, large group by
similar causation or individua) hospitals
per budget.

Develop preliminary formats for'
physician practice assessments if this
aspect of the project Is activdted.

Identify specific hospital metrics based
on causation segmentation In addition to
each partlcipatlf>o hospctars composite
deniab metric AND establish earliest

possible baseline for specific metrics
related to causation identified in the
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New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

6.9. July 2018

analytic phase of the project.

•  Review interventional progress with RHC
and initiate discussion of ongobg
strategy In the event that option year
is funded.

•  Develop data summary format for
conecting baselines and monthly
monitoring for composite denials metric
and any focused metrics.

•  Review IntervenUonal strategy and
progress with patient accounts managers
from participating hospitals. Hold each
hospital li^son accountable for obtaining
identified baseDne arfo monthly
monitoring of denials metrics.
Subcontractor's analytics team on sKe for
patient accounts managers meeting to
address concerns and tactics for

obtaining monthly monitohng data.

• Monitor NERHRT performance to date
relative to RHPCS and NEPI relevant

objectives. Prepare release of funding In
proportion to project completion.

•  Provide month end progress report to
RHPCS.

•  Discuss status of option year two fundirtg
with DHHS contracting office and / or
RHPCS.

Continue Irtforventional strategy to
address most costly denials causation for
each participating hospital.

Review preliminary physician practice
assessment data with subcontractor and

prepare for presentation to August
patient accounts mangers.

Review project and subcontractor's)
performance with RHC. Solicit final RHC
Input concerning strategy In the event
that option year two is funded.

Review project and subcontractor
performance with patient accounts
managers

Populate baseline and monthly
monltorino metrics for each hospital and
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N«w Hamp«hir« Department of Health and Human Services'
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A

6.10. August 2018

review data with NHHA data, finance and
reimbursement colleagues.

•  Request report of completion of RHPCS
objectives from NERHRT Executive
Director. Oetennlne and process final
payoff due to NERHRT based on
completion or partial completion of
objectives.

•  Provide month end report to RHPCS

•  Begin to plan project termination or^
continuation based on status of option
year 2 funding.'

If option year two is funded by OHHS -
meet with subcontractor's data anatytics
team to determine deep dive strategy for
major reasons for denials at each
hospital. Assess relevance of otqective
3.2.2.2,3.2.2.3, 3.2.2.4. 3.2.2.5,3.2.2.6,
and 3.2.2.8.

If option year two Is funded.by DHHS.
prepare physician practice strategy and
investigate a broader cperatlonai
strategy (e.g. antibioUc stewardship
related cost savings and dinlcal
practice).

Summarize option year 2 strategy and
present to RHC.

Summarize option year 2 strategy aryj
present to patient account mar^agers
meeting.

Summarize option year 2 strategy and
present as part of month end report

to RHPCS. Summarize data for

t)a$6lines and monthly monitoring data
avallabte at month's end.
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New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Servfces
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibllfty Program

Exhibit A>1 - List of Critical Access Hospitals

New Hampshire's Crttical Access Hospitals fCAHs)

Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital -10 Alice Peck Day Dr, Lebanon, NH 03766

Andrcscoggin Valley Hospital - 59 Page Hill Rd, Berlin, NH 03570

Cottage HpspHal - 90 Swtftwater Rd. Woodsville. NH 03785

Franklin Regional Hospital • 15 Aiken Ave. Franklin. NH 03235

Huggins Hospital • 240 S Main SI, Woireboro, NH 03694

Littleton Regional Healthcare - 600 St Johnsbury Rd. Littleton. NH 03561

Memorial Hospital - 3073 White Mountain Hwy. North Conway. NH 03660

Monadnock Community Hospital • 452 Old Street Rd. Peterborough, NH 03458

New London Hospital • 273 County Rd. New London. NH 03257

Speare Memorial -16 Hospital Rd, Plymouth. NH 03264

Upper Connecticiit VaUey Hospltai -161 Corliss Ln. Colebrook. NH 03576

Valley Regional Healthcare - 243 Elm St. Claremont. NH 03743

• Weeks Medical Ceriter -173 Middle St. Lancaster. NH 03584

List of Critical Access HMpltab EmMA-l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medlcare.Rurat Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit A-2 - Performance Measures

1. To ensure that New Hampshire Critical Access Hospitals (CAHs) understand
denial rates in comparison to other CAHs.

1.1. Target: 100% of hospitals receive baseline denial rates and a comparison to
New Hampshire CAHs and National CAHs.

1.1.1. Numeratoc Number of CAHs receiving a report of denial rates and
comparison to other CAHs

1.1.2. Denominator: Nurtiber ofCAHs participating In denial rate analysis

2. To ensure that New Hampshire CAHs understand their charge capture
effectiver>e88 and areas for Improvement

2.1.Target: 100%. of hospitals receive an analysis of their charge capture
effectiveness and receive technical assistance to boost charge capture
effectiveness.

2.1.1. Numerator: Number of CAHs receiving charge capture effectiveness and
technical assistarKe to boost effectiveness.

2.1.2. Penominator Number of CAHs participating In charge capture
effectiveness analysis.

3. To ensure that all NH CAHs Improve their revenue cycle management and are
ghren the opportunity to attend activities to Improve It.

3.1.Target: At least 1 revenue cyde management activity is offered during the
contract period that is feasible for a staff member of each CAH to attend.

3.1.1. Numerator: Number of CAHs receiving revenue cyde management
assistance

3.1.2. Denominator: Total number of CAHs offered revenue cyde management
assistance

4. To Improve CAH performance on financial Indicators by helping them to
Implement revenue cycle management activities.

4.1.Target: At least 50% of CAHs patUdpating In revenue cyde management
activities show an improvement in 1 ftnandal indicator.

4.1.1. Numerator Number of CAHs showing Improvement In 1 revenue cyde
Indicator.

4.1.2. Denominator Number of CAHs partidpating in revenue cyde
management activity.
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New HampsMre Department of Koatth ertd Human Services
Medicare Rural Hospital Flexibility Program

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. TNs contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Fe^ral Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.241, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. Rural Hospital Rexibility Program In providing services pursuant to
Exhibtt A, Scope of Services. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Services In
compEance with funding requirements.

2. The State shall pay the contractor en amount not to exceed the Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements. Faiiure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or

■ future funding.

4. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures. Expentftures shall
be in accordance v^th the approved line Item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1 end 6-2;

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

5.1. The Contractor shall submit a monthly Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State'by the tvrentieth (20")
working day of each month, wtilch identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred In the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated er>d returned to the
Department In order to Initiate payment.

5.2. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the comract Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

5.3. in lieu of hard copies, el) invoices may be assigned an electronic signature end emailed to
DPHSContract8iillnQ<a>dhhs.nh.QQv or inw)ices may be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
.Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive i

Concord, NH 03301

6. -Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentatioo as identified in Exhibit A.
Scope of Services end in this Exhibit 6.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fundirtg imder this Contract may be
• withheld, in whole or in pert in the .event of noncompliarve with eny State or Federal taw, rule or regulation

Bpplicable to the services provided, or if said services have not been completed in eccordence with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

8. Whan the Contract Price Limitation Is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capadly at no-
charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

9. Notwithstarxling paragraph 18 of the Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment Bmtted to transfer the
funds within the budgets in Exhibit B'1 end Exhibit B-2 and witNn the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive CoundJ.
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New Hampthire Department of Health and Human Servicee
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obli9ations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. CompllarKa with Federel and State Laws: if the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of ir>dividu8ls such eliglblltty delenninatlon shall be made in accordance with applicable federal ar^d
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manr>ar of Determiruitlon: Eligibility determinatioru shell be mede on-forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Doeumentatlcn: In addition to the determination forms reqiired by the Department ihe Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include aP
Information necessary to support an tfi^blDty determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentabon
regarding eligiblllly determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fdr Koaringa: The Contractor understands (hat all applicants for services hereur>der, as well as P
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hea^ regarding that determination. The j
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that an appOcants for services shall be permitted to fill out |
an application form and lhal each .applicant or re-epplicant shaO be informed of hisyher right to a fair i
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. I

Oratufties or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, eny Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract artd any 8ut>-contr8Ct or sub-agreement if it is
determined thai payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
eny officials, offiurs, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Corrtractor.

Retreacthre Payments: Notwithstanding enything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document contract or understanding. It Is expressly ur>dersti>od end agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
eny purpose or for any services provided to any irtoividual prior to the Effective Date of the'Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for eny services provided
prior to the date oh which the Individual applies for services or (except as other^e provided by (he
federal regulations) prior to a determlnati^ that the individual is eligtole for such servtoes.

7. Condffions of Purchase: Notwithstanding enything to the contrary contained In the Contract nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require (he Department to purchase services
hereurtoer al a rate which reimburaes the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

. which exceeds the amounts reasortable arxl necessary to assure the Quality of such service, or at a
rate w^^ exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during (he term of this Contract or after receipt of (he Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Dep^ment shad determirw that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligrt>(e individuats
or other third party funders. the Depanmertt may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereurtoer. In which event new rates shaB be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimburisemerri In

excess of costs;

/MExfBbft C - Speciii PiwWorw Contractor IrVtttfs.
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Now Hampshire Oepartment of Health end Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractof In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereundcr. When the Contrector Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuels for services, the Contrector agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Departmeru to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time durlrtg the period of retention of records estabtished herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

6. MalntenefKc of Records: In addition to the elig^lity records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to rwalntain the following records during the Contract Period:

. 0.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents er>d other data evkJencir^g and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contraclor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the,Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance vrith accounting procedures end practices which sufTiciently end
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which ere acceptable to the Dep«rtment..and
to include, without limrtetion. alHedgers. books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requbitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in^tlnd contribulions. labor time cards, payrolls, and-other records requested or required by the
Oepertment.

B.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services Airlr^g the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application arx)
eligibiiity (including all forms, required to determlf>e eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and eD invoices submitted to the Departmient to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
' Contractor shaD retain mecScei records on each patient/fedpient of services.

9. Audit: Contrector shall submit an annual eu^ to the Department wtthJn 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the proyWon of
Office of Management end Budget Circulaf A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Govermnents. and Non
Profit Organizations* arxf the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizalions,
Programs. ActMbes and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to rmanctal compliance audits.
9.1. Audit end Revievr; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

DepartmenL the United States Oepartment of Health and Human Services, aryf any of th^
designated representatives shaD have access to aO reports end records malntaln'ed pursuarft to
the Contract for purposes of audit examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract. It ts •
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable tor any state
or federal audit exceptiorts and shall return to the Department, all payments made uruler the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All irrformalion. reports, arxf records maintained hereunder or collected
In oorviection with the performence of the services and the Contract shall be confidential end shaD not
be dtsdosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuani to stale laws end the regulatiofw of
the Department regarding the use and disdosure of such infonrnaUon. disdosura may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties arid for purposes
directly connected to the admlnistretlon of the services end the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning e recipient for any purpose not
direcUy connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's respooslbailies with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the redplent his
attorney or guardian.
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NohMthstdnding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: FlscaJ 8r>d Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: VVritten interim financial reports contairtlrtg a detailed descriptbn of-

all costs and non-eltowabie expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereurtder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department

11.2. Rnal Repoh; A flnal report shall be submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The'Rnai Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Depailment and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and ot^tlves stated in the Proposal
and other informadon required by the Department

12. CoiT^tatlon of Services: Disanowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum mmber of units provided for in the Contract af>d upon payment of the price Omitatioo
hereunder, the Cor^tract and ell the obiigations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by tfw terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Rnal Expertditure Report the Department shall disallow any expertses dalmed by tf)e Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Crodfta: All documents, rtotices. press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report document etc.) was financed urtder a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Servicas. with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire andfor such other funding sources as were avaitabie or
required, e.g., the United States Departmerft of Health and Human Services..

14. Prior Approval eryf Copyright Ownermhlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
pcchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printi^, production,
dhtrtoution or use. The DHHS v41l retain copyright ownership tor any end all original metertafs
produced. Including, but not Ibniled to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
postsfs, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior vAltton approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facllftles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any fadlties
for providir>g services, the Corttractor shall comply with aD laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any PubBc Officer or officers
pursuant to laws v4tlch shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the faci&ty or the provlsibn of the services at such facility. If any governmental Ocensa or
permil shall be required for the operatton of the said facfOty or the performartce of the said services,
(he Cor)tr8dor wiD procure said Hcensa or permil. and vriil at aO times comply with the terms and
condiljons of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractof hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of tWs Contract the facflities shall
comply v4th all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of Uie Rre Marshal arKf
the loiul fire protecUon agerKy. and shall be in conformance virith local building atKl zonlr^g codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Emptoymeni
Opp^nfty Plan (EEOP) to the Office tor OvU Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if 11 has
received a single award of 6SOO.O(X) or more. If the rec>ptont receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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• more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certiflcatfon Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving (ess than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the reclpleni wlD provide an

.  EEOP Certirication Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Norv
profit orgartizabons. Indian Tribes, and medical ar>d educ8t)or>al institutiorts are exempt from tfw
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certificabon form to the OCR to claim (he exemption.
EEOP CtftlfcatJon Forms are available at: http'i/www.op.usdof/about/ocr/pdfs/cerlpdf.

17. Umltod English Proficiency (LEP); As ctarified by Executive Order13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
elimination includes discrimination on the basis of ilmiied &>gtl$h proficterwy (LEP). To ensure
comprtance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 end Tide VI of the CM)
Rights Act of 1664, Contractors must talte reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meanir^ul access-to its programs.

18. Ptiot Program for EnharKement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protection: The
following shall appiy to al contracts (hat exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 46
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Empioyee WHtsTiEaiowER Rcmts ano Requirement To Inform Empioyees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and emplbyees working on this contract will be subject to the whtsOeblower rights
and remedies In the pDot program on Contractor emptoyee vrfilstlebtowef protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 826 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) ertd FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the wortdorce.
of emptoyee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as desalbed insecbon
3.908 of the Federal Acqufsitlon Regutatton.

(c) 11)0 Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including thb paragraph (c), in att
subcontracts over tf)e simplified acqx4sibon threshold.

19. Subcontrectorv: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain f)e8l(h care services or furictions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the resportslbdlty and accountability for the funcbon(8). Prior to
sttocontrading, the Contractor shall evaluate the 8ut)cof)tractor'8 ebinty to perform the delegated

This 1$ accomplished through a written egreemertt that specifies 8cb\4ties and reportirtg
responsibilibes of the subcontractor and provides for revotdng the delegaOon or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performanca is not a^uaie: Subcontractors ere subject to the same contractual
corrdtttons as the Contractor arvj the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those coridiborts.
When the Contractor delegates s function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shatt do (he foltowing:
19.1. Evaluate the prospecbve subcontractor's ebaity to perform the ectlvibes. before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities snd reporting
responstoaities and how sancUorts/revocalton will be managed If the subcontractor's
periormance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the eubcorUractor's performance on an ongoing basis

EiMMl C - Special Protfisions Contractor Wttats JM
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19.4. Provide to OHHS en annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS sheO. at Its discretion, review end approve all subcontracts.

tf the Contractor identines deficiencies or areas for Improvement are fdenllTied, the Contractor shall
take conective action.

OERNITIONS
As used In the Contract, the foOoviAng terms shall have the followtr>g meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
aSowobie and reimbursable in accordance with cost end accounting priixlples establbhed in accordance
with slate and federal taws, regulatiorts. rules end orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor iwianual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guldellrres' and v^Uch contains the regulatlona govemlrtg the ftrandal
acUvttJes of cortractor agencies w4rich have contracted with (t>e Stale of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL" If applicable, shall mean the document sutjmitied by the Contractor on a form or forms
requirod by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
indviduals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and corxations of tf* Contract and satUng ftrth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the ContracL

UNIT; Fa each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligibfe individuals hereundar. shall mean that
period of time a that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exf^t B of the
Conbact.

FEDERAiySTATE LAW: Wherever fedaal or state laws, regulations, arias, orders, and policies, etc. era
referred to In the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean ell such l8v«. regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shal mean lhal document prepared by the NH bepartmori of AdministTBtive
Services containing a compllatton of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdmWstrative Procedures Act NH RSA Ch 541 -A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations prorhulgated tftoreunda.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contracta guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract wOl not supplant any existing federal funds svallable fa these services.

ExMM C - Spsdtf Provbions CeiwutDr InidibM
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the Ger>eral Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreemenl. is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDmONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
NohMthstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, afl obligations of the Slate
hereunder; Including without limitabon. the continuance of payments, in whole or in part.
ur>der this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of furvfs.
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds ̂ ected by
arry state or federal legistative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the eppropriatlon or avaDobSlty of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In ^iblt A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part In no event shall the
State be tiable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available-furKls. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modiflcation of appropriated or available funds, the
State shaO have the right to withhold payment uttil such hir^s become avaitatjie. If ever. The

. State shall have the right lo reduce, terminate or modify services urtder this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to (rartsfer funds from any other source or accourtt Into the
-Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provision of this contract Termination, is amended by adding (he
following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate. 30 days after gtving the Contractor written notice (hat the State is exercising Its
ration to terminate (he Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shafl, within 15 days of rKitice of earty
tenrtination, develop and submit to the State a TransiUoh Plan for services under the
Agreemenl. including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needsvof cDents
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those r>eeds.

10.3 The Contractor shall fu&y cooperate with the State erfo shall promptfy provide detailed
informstton to support the TransfOcn Plan Including, but noi limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to (he State as
requested.

10.4 In the event ihat services under the Agreement including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltiooed to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the TrartsHion Ptan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a rhethod of rx)tifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transltloa The Contractor shall IrKlude (he proposed communications in its
Transition Ptan submitted to (he State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to three (3) additional years,
subjed to, the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of ser^ces .and approval by
the Goverrvy erfo Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE REQUIRFMg>ffy

The Contractof Wantifiod in SacUon 1.3 of lha Ganeral Proviaiona aQreea to comply with tha provtsiona of
Sartions5151-5160ofthapfup-Fraa Workplaca Ad of 1888 (Pub. L 100-690. T»leV. SubttloO:41
U.S.C. 701 at aaq.). and furthar agraea to hava lha Cortractora repreaantallva. aa idantifiad in S^cna
1.11 and 1.12ofthaOaner8lProviaionsaxaciJlathafoDowingCaftific8tlon;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN.INDfVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Thb certification is raquirad by lha ragulatioRs Implemanting Sactbna 5151.6160 of tha Drug-Fraa
WtMlipiaea Ad of 1888 (Pub. L 10(V690. Title V. Subtitla D; 41 U.S.C. 701 at aaq.). Tha January 31
1989 ragulationa ware amandad and pubftahad ea Part 11 of tha iytay2S. 1990 Federal Register (pegM
21681-21691). and requira cartiflcatbn by grameaa (and by infaranca. aub-grantaaa and lub-
cortractora). prbr to award, that thay will maintain a drug-free worKptaca. Section 3017.630(c) of tha
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, aub-grantaaa.and aub-corrtractora) that Is a State
may elact to rr\8ka orw certlficdion to tha Department in each federal fiscal year In 6au ̂  certiflcatas fbr
eachyant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate eat out below is a
mat^l represent^n of fad upon which reDance is pbced when the agency awards tha grant Falsa
cartificatw or violBbon of lha certification shaD t)a grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or dabarmenl Contractors using thb form should
sand it to: ■

Commissionar
NH Department of Heallh and Human Sarvicas
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wU conUnue to provide a drug-free worttpiace by:
1.1. Pubfishlng a statement notifying employaes that tha untawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controUed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace arb ipedfying the actions that wiO t)e taken against employees for violation of such
prohlbfiion:

1.2. Establtshing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Worm employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of dn/g abuse In tha workpl^;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any avaflable drug courtsellng. rehablitatlon. and employee assistarKe programs; and
1.2.4. The penaRles that may be imposed upon employees for dmg abuse vblatiohs

occurring In the workplace; ^
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); .
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condtion of

employrnent under the grant the employee wll
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of hit or her conviction tor a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurrir>g in the vnrkplaoe no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wHhln ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpamgraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, ir>cludmg position title, to every grarti
officer on whose grant acth^ the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
ktentificstion rwmberts) of each affected grwt;

1.6. TAlng one of the follo^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
suttparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convictad
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an empioyee. up to and including '

termination, cortsistent with the requirements of the Rehabailation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

T.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
reh^lGtatlon program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local heatU).
taw enforcement, or, other appropriate agency.

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worliplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2, 1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(8) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identtfied here.

Contractor Name; Foundation for Healthy Communrties

jf-n-n
Data Narrie: Peter Ames

Executive Director

PAEmM 0 - CeniScsdon (Vfjtnling 0*ug Frve Certnciar irSBA ' ̂
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CERTIFICATION REGAROINO LOBBYING /

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he Genere! Provbiorts agrees to comply with (he provisions of
Section 319 of PubGc Loe 101>121, (3ovemment wide Guidance for New Restrlcti^s on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foQowIng Cedlfication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
'US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

■Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Famflies under Title IV*A
'Child Sup^ Enforcement Program under Title 1V>0
'Social Services Block Grant Program utKler Title XX
*Medic8id Program under Title XiX
'Communly Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Oevetopment Block Grant under Tide IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for inftuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agercy. a lylember
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a M^ber of Cortgress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal conbact. contlnuallon, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub<ofltractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated fur>ds have been paid or wiQ be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or entployee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an offteer or employee of Congress, or on employee o1 a Member of Congress in connection wtth this
Federal contract grant, ban. or cooperalNe agreement (ar>d by specffic mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submfl Stend^ Form LLL. (Otsdosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned thai! raguire that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sut>-awards at aO tiers (Induding sut>contr8Cts. sub^rartts. end contracts under grants,
bans, and cooperative agreements) and that aO tub-recipients shall certify and <Psdnse accordingly.

Thb certWicatbn b a material representatbn of fad upon which reliance was placed ̂ n thb transaction
was made or entered into. Subn^bn of thb certificatbn b e prerequbite for making or entering into thb
transaction Imposed by Sectbn 1352. Tde 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falb to ftfe the required
cartlfieatbn.shaO be subfed to a dvfl penalty of not leu than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name. Foundation for Healthy Communities

ii-iT-n
N89ft:Peter Ames
TMa*

Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REQARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

-  AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

. The Cortractof Uentifed in Se^on 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Omce of the President. Executive Order 12549 end 45 CFR Pert 76 regarding Debaiment.
Suspension. ar>d Other ResponsbiUty, Matters, tnd further agrees to have the Contractofs-
representative. as identified In Sectiorrs 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foQowIng
Certiflcatiof^: , .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing end submtttlr»g this proposal {contract), the prospective primery participant is providino the

certification set out below. ^

2. The irrabinty of a person to provide the certification raquired below wiO not necessarily result in denial
ctf partic^ation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shaO submit an
expianstion of why H carmot provide the certiflcalion. The cert^cation or explartation wiO be
consid^ed in connection with the NH Department of Health arto Human Services' (OHHS)
detemiDiation whether to enter into this trartsactlon. However, failure of the prospective primary
partleipant to furnish a cartificalion or an exptanstlon shall disquatify such'person from participation In
this transectlon.

3. The certification In this clause is a material rapreserttation of fact upon which railanca was pbKttd
v4>en OHHS determlnad to er<er Irrto this transaction. If it Is later determmed that the prospective
primary participant kncHMngly rendered an erroneous cartificetion. In addttion to cSher remedies
availabto to the Federal Oovemmeril, OHHS may terminala this transaction tor cause or default.

4. The prospective primary partidpanl shell prqyide immediate wfltlen notice to the OHHS agency to
abom iWs proposal (contract) is submitted If at any tbrra the prospective primary participant le^s
that its certlfteation was erroneous when submitted or has become error>eous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The tenra 'covered transaction.* 'debarred.* 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'parHcipant.' 'persoa' 'primary covared transaction.' 'prindpaJ.' 'proposal.' and
'NAhjntarOy exdudad,' as used In this clausa. have the meanings set out in the Definitions end
Coverage sections of the rutes implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definOiorts.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the
proposed covared trarttaction bt entered into, ft shall rwt knovmgly ar>ter Into any lower tief covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineOgible. or voluntarify excluded
from participation m this covered transaction, unless authorised by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that ft wiH include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Deberment Suspension. tnellglbQ^ and Vofuntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Trans8Ctior«.' provided by DHHS. wtthout modification. In aD tower tier covered
transactiorts and In aO soUdtabons for tower tier covered trarisectiora.

8. A par1lcs>ant in a coverad trar^saction may rely upon e certification of a prospective partidpanl In a
lower tier covered transaction that ft is not debarred, suspended, ineilgble. or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless 11 knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which it determines the eligibiliiy of tts princlpais. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurei7*ertt List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmenl of a system of records
in order to render in good fafth the certification required by this dausa. Tha knowtedga ar^

EtfilWi F-CwVScxflonRtqvOngOvbwnwnl. Si«p«ntion Con&»ctor trairti
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cnformaton ot a participant b not required to exceed that which is normaOy possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paregraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction kncnvingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspertded. deterred, ineiiglbte, or voluntarOy excluded from participation in thb transaction, in
addition to other remedies av^!>le to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate thb transaction
for cause or defeuB.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Bs kr^owledge and belief, that it and its

princlpab:
11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposad for debarment declared ir>efigfcta. Of

volunlartly excluded from covered transactim by any Federal departmeni or egertcy;
112. have not with'n a three-year period preceding thb proposal icontract) been convictad of or had

a dvil judgment rendered against ttem for commteion of fraud or a crimina) offense in
connectiort with obtaining, atlempting to obtain, or performing a ptADe (Federal. State or loca!)
transaction or a contract under a pubfic transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes of commission of embezzlement, theft.' forgery, brtery. fabification or destruction of
records, makiixi faba stalements, or reeetvlng stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwbe crtmb^ly or cMBy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or locaO with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (f)(b)
of this certification; er>d

11.4. have not within a three-year period precading thb application/proposa] had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defaulL

13. Where the prospective primary parUcipant b unable to certify to any of the statements in thb
certification, such prospective participant shaS attach an explanation to thb proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lowef tier participant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the of Bs knovtodga and belief that It and fts prlncipab:
13.1. are not presently deterred, suspended, proposed for determent declared IneOgble, or

voiunterily exduded from psitic^ation in thb transaction by any fadaral departmerit or agency.
13.2. where the prospective bwer tier participant is un8t>le to certify to any of the above, such

prospective partic^anl shafi atta^ an aj^bnation to thb proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting thb proposal (contract) that it wiO
indude thb dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Detern>ent. Suspensim. IneOgibltity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transadions,* without modification in aS lower tier covered
transactions and in a0 solicitations for lower tier covered transadions.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

Ihll'd
Data ' Nqrfia: Peter Ames

Executive Director
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Now Hampthire Dopartmeni of Heatth and Human Servicoa
Eahlbft G

CERTIFICATION OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL. TREATMENT OF FATTW^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tho Contractor Idenltfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections i.lt and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
. federal nondiscriminetjori requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from dlscrimiiUting. either In employmeni practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basb of race, color, reOgion. natrorta) origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce en Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohbited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefss. on the basts of race, color, religion, natbnal ofigin. and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2(XX)d, which prohbKs recipients of federal financial
assistarKe from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or nationa) origin in any program or activity):

- the RehablBtation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohblts rectpienls of Federal financial
assbtance from (focriminating on the basb of disabiity. in regard to employment end the delivefy of
services or beneftfs. in any program or activity;

• the Americens with Dbabiirties Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
dbaimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with dbabilttles in employment. State end local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

•the EducationAmendmenb of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 16B1.1663,1665-66). which prohbiU
dscrimlnation on the basis of sex in federally assbted education programs;

-the Age Discrimirtation Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basb of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assbtance. It does not include
employment dbcrimhation;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regubtlons - OJJDP Grartt Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondbcrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection erf the lav^ for feOh-based and commurtity
orgarujations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neight)ort>ood organtzatioro;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Fahh-Based
Organizations); and Whbtteblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natlonat Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fbcal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enaded January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancernent of Contrad Employee Whbtlebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whbtle blowing activities In conrwdfon with fisderal grants arxl contracts.

The certificate set out below b a material representation of fad upon which reliance b placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemmertt wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhw c

Cwtrndor
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New Hsmpehire Department of Hearth orxJ Human Services

ExhrbltG

In the event a Tedefsl or State court or Federal or State administratlye agency makes a finding of
discfiminatioft after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natiortal origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wfl) forward a copy of the finding to trte OfTice for Civil Rights, to
tr^ applicable contracting egertcy or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Omtrndsmen.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provblorts agrees by signature of the Ccrrtractor't
representative as Warrtifiod In Sectiorts 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUowtno
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (ooniract) the Corrtractcr agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Foopdation for Healthy Communities

Itn L̂L
Dtt® Namb: Peter Ames

two: Executive Director

ExrtWlG A.
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N«w Hamp«hlr« D«partmont of Hoatth and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REQARDINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 1pS>227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chikfren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facBity owned or leased or
con^ted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heaRt>, day care, education,
or library services to children under the ege of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs ether
directly or through State or local goverrvnents. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to cNUren's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facHities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatrT>ent. Foflure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuA In the imposition of a dvB monetary pertalty of up to
81000 per day and/a the knposBion of an admlnbtrative complianc'e order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General ProvisioTts agrees, by signature of the Cor^actor's .
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provblons. to execute the foDowfng
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contrecL the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with aD applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, PartC. known as the Pro-ChBdrenActcf 1994.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

11-17-17

TlSe^ Ames
Executive Director
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

^  HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUStNESS ASSOCIATE AQREEMEMT

The Corttractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance PortiabSity and AccountabOrty Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Priva^ and Security of Indivlduany Identifiable Health Informabon, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and sutcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity* shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Departmertt of Health and Human Services.

{^) Minltim.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulatens.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set' shaD have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
in 45 CFR Sedioni 64.501.

e. "Data Aogreqatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section164.501.

f. "Health Care Qperattefts' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations*
bi45CFR Section 164.501.

1

g. "HITECH Act* means thCi Health Information Technology for Economic end Clinical Health
Ad. TlUeXllj. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery ar^d Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
'104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term IndividuaT in 45 CFR Section 160.103
ar>d shaQ indude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

). "Privacy Rule' sheO rrwan the Standards for Privacy of Ir^lvidually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shaO have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
lirformation" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .

imtrano* PertMOrir M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

!• 'ReQulred bv Lavr* shall have the sanrte meenirtg as the term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary' shaO mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securttv Rule' shaQ meari the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR ̂ rt 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadatjle. or Indecipherable to unauthorized mdMduals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization thai is eccredlted by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended f^om time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infoimatlon.

a. Business Associate shaD not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasortabiy necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but rtot limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents. shaD not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PH! In any manner thai would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disdose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Busir>ess Associate:
il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. befow: or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disdose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conFidentiaily and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentlafity of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI in response to a

.. request for disclosure on the basis that It b required by law, without first notnying
Coveted Errtity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief, if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

.yJOU ExNbltl Cwncwimuts _/22_
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New Hempshlro Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted aD
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity rtotlfles the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bourtd by additional restrictions over arfd above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shan not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional secur^ safeguards.

(3) OMiaatiofm and Acthrlttea of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall r>obfy the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediatafy
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Enitity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediatety perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved. ir>dudtng the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of r^dentificatlon;

0 The ur>authorized person used the protected health Information or to wfiom the
disclosure was made;

' 0 Whet^r the protected heatth information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to tha protected heatth Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immetfately report the findings of the risk assessmei^ In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shad comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make avallabte all of its internal poBcles and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the BuslfMSs Associate on behatf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ell of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity

.  shall be considered a dtred third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Conbactor's int^ed business assodatas, wtK> will be receiving PHI

EjtfWI Can&*aflf intfia
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request.from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its ofRces all
records, t>ook&, agreements, policies and procedures relatir>g to the use end disclosure
of PHI to tt>e Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
fequirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written requi»t from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall n>ake such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to futfUl its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as vrould be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for en accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to futfiD Its obOgatiora
to provide an accounting of disclosure with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Sectioni 64.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amerviment of. or accounting of PHI
directty from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shaO within two (2)
business days fomrard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall haw the
responsibility of reponding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
indMduaTs request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rute, the Busirtess Associate
shall Instead respond to the lr>divtduars request as required by such law artd notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement for any reason, the ■
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity. aD PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In cormctlon with the
Agreement and shall not retain any copies or back>up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the dispo^on of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosufes of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction irtieaslble. for so lortg as Business

50014 E;MMI Contractor
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N«w Hampshire Depaitmont of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Assodate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Busirtess Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Busirtess Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) OMInatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall rtotify Buslrtess Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disdosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Buslrwss Assodate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
dlsdosed by Business Assodate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assodate of any restrictions on the use or
disdosure of PHI that Covered Enti^ has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction ntay affect Business Assodate's use or disdosure of
PHI.

(fi) Termination for Cauae

In edition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions tP>37) of this
Agr^ment the Covert Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Busmess Associate of the Business Assodate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Assodate to cure the .
aOeged breach within a timeframe spedfied by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shaD the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mtacetlaneoua

a. Deflnttions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
ShaD have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to Indude this EidUbit I, to
a Section In the Privacy ar>d Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is rwcessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule. ar>d applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate aclmowtedges that it has no ovmershlp rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interofetation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

1^2014 1 CerWvctor M8«i>
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New Himpshlre Department of Health end Human Services

Exhibit I

6. Seoreoatlon. If any term or condrtion of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(8) or circuntstarKe is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect othier terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f- Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
star>dard terms and conditions (P>37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

it of Hedth arid Human ServicesDe

ylOCL
Signature of Authorized Representative

UbA
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

"Ulli7
Date

Foundation for Healthy Communttles

Name olihe^ontractor.

^Sjcfiature of Authorized Representative
Peter Ames
Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

r-\
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New HampsMre Department of Health and Human Services
ExhbltJ

CERTinCATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA^COMPUANCE

The FedefB) Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equai to or greyer than $25,000 end awarded on or aflar October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executi^ compensation and associated first4ier sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
Ir^l aw»d Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications retuK in a total award isqual to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Compensation InformatlDn). the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the fbilowing lnformatior> for any
subaward or corvtract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of awant

3. Furxling agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award trtto descriptive of the purpose of the fundhg action
7. Location of (he entky
B. Principte place, of performance
B. Unique identifief of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensatior) ei>d names of the top frve executives if:
-^10.1. Mom (hain 80% of ermuaJ gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those

revenues ere greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by ttte end of the mortth, plus 30 days, in which
the award or eward amendment Is made.

The Contractor identfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provbions agrees to comply wSh the provisions of
The Federal Fusing Accountability artd Transparency /yd. Public Law 109-262 end Public Law 110-252,
artd 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportifig Subaward ar>d Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representatNe. as identified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certtflcstion:
The below named Corriractor agrees to provide needed information as outTined above to the NH
Department of HeaBh a^ Human Services and to comply with aB applicable provisions of the Federal
Financia! Accountat>iQly and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communrties

Napte: Peter Ames
Executive Director

M.Eettil J-C«ntSe<aen AoSvdStQih* F«4«ilFundb^ Cartrsdor WtWa.
AecsiffXMy Are Imptrwf Ad (FFATA) Camdhnca .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ExhIbllJ

FORMA

As the Contractor idenUfied in Section 1.3 of the Gerteral Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
trelow Gsted questions are true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 615335283

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fscal year, did your business or organizalion
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
bans, grants, subsjrants, end/or cooperallve agreements: end (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross re^«nue^ from U.S. federal contrects. subcontrects. foarts, grants, tubgranli. arwt/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 92 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 92 above b YES, pbase artswer the folbwing:

3. Does the pubTic have access to (nformation about the compensatbn of the executives b your
business or organlzatbn through peifodic reports fDed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securttles
Exchange Ad of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(e). 78o(d)) or sectbn 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19667

NO YES

If the answer to 93 above b YES. stop here

If the answer to 93 above b NO, please answer the fonowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your busirvess or
organizstion are as foflows:

Narrve:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Name;

Amount-

Amount;

Amount

Amount:

Amount

CUOe«Al87U
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS fMFQRMATlQN SECURITY RFQUIRgMeMTS

1. Coftfdential Information: In additen to Paraoraph09of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose ofthis
SOW. the Department's Conndential Information includes any and all information owned or ma reaped by the
State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health end Human Services (DtWS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which coRection, disclosure, protectior), and
disposition Is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
PefSor>ai Heblth Information (PHI). Personally identifiabie Information (Pll), Federal Tax information (FTI).
Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI), end or other sertsttive and confidential
Irrformation.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed^ and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectationsinduder

2.1. Cordractor shall not store or transfer data collected in connection with the services rerxlered
under this Agreement outside of the United States. This Irtcludes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locatiorts.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidentiai information throughout the
information Dfecycle. where applicable, (from creation, trarttformation. use, storage arid secure
destruction) reg^iess of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain epproprlsta authentication and acces s controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidentiai information whereappticabie.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minbricfn. any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g.. laptops. USB
drives, as weO as iMien transmitted over public networks (Ike the trrtemet using current industry
standards and best practices for strongencryption.

2.5. Ensure proper securfty monitoring capablHties are In place to detect potential security events that can
Impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness.and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors In
su(9on of protecting Department confidential informati^

2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department withiri twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional emafi
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security Inddent, or
suspected breach vrfdch effects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term *ereach* In section 164.402 of Thie 45. Code of

Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident' shaO have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incidenf in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards e/Kl Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications wil) be sent to the following email addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChieflnfQrmatk>nOfTlcenSkfhhs.nh.oQv

2.7.1.2. DHHSInformaliQnSecuritvOfficefBldhh5.nh.QOv

2.B. if the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its sub-contractor systems),
the vernfor wfil maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or
contract termination; and will obtain written certification for any Stata of Rtow Hampshire data destroyed
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by the vendor or eny subcontrectors es a part of or>gotr>9. emergertcy, end or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic meda comaining State of New Hampshire data shal be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program In accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletlen. or otherwise physiceOy destroying the media.^for example, degaussing). The vendor
wil) document arfo certify in writing at time of the date destruction, and wiD provide written certirication
to the Department upon request. The written certification will include eil detals necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed end valideted. Where eppliceble, regulatory end'
professlonaJ standards for retention requirements wil) be Jointly evaiLSted by (he State ar>d the vendor
prior to destruction.

2.9. if the verfoor wiU be sub<ontracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor v«iD maintain a program of an internal process or processes0>at
defines specific security e]q>ectatfons. and monitoring compCarKe to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The venrto w(D Mork with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable State of New Hampshtreand
Department system access end authorization poUcies arxf procedure, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements wlD
be completed erxJ signed by the verxJor and any appiicabie sub-contractors prfor to system access being
euthorized.

4. if the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendorwitl
work with the Department to sign end execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department end is responsible for m8intainir)g compfiance with theagreemenL

5. The vendor will vKXk with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the Ufa of Ihe vendor engagement The survey will be completed annually, or an aRemate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the verxlor. or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the er^agement between the OepanmerU arxf the vendor changes.
The vendor wil not store, knowingly or unknovN^ngly. any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshora or outside the boundaries of (he United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate euthorized dafo owner or leadership member within the Department

6. Data Security Breech Liability. In the event of eny security breach Contractor shaD make efforts to investigate
the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to prevent future breach arxJ mirvmize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shaD recover from the Contractor an costs of resporsa and
recovery from the breach. Including but not Bmlted to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated wRh website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.
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